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AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Declaration of the Members of the Board of Directors and the person responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Company

We, the Members of the Board of Directors and the person responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of AvangardCo Investments Public Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended 31
December 2017, based on our opinion, which is a result of diligent and scrupulous work, declare that the elements
written in the consolidated financial statements are true and complete.

Members of the Board of Directors:

Oleg Bakhmatyuk

Nataliya Vasylyuk

Oleg Michael Pohotsky

Iryna Melnyk

Person responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017:

Stanislav Pohorilyi g’
(Deputy CFO}

22 March 2018




AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Management Report

The Board of Directors of AvangardCo Investments Public Limited {the “Company”) presents to the members its
annual report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and of its subsidiaries
(together with the Company referred to as “the Group™) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group which remained the same as in the previous year are:

- keeping of technical laying hen, production and selling of eggs,

- incubation (production and sale of day-old chick), farming of young poultry for sale, and poultry,
- production and selling of mixed fodder and

- processing of eggs and selling of egg products.

Financial results

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on page 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

The loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to USD 6 734 thousand (2016: loss
USD 56 978 thousand) which the Board of Direclors recommends to be transferred to the revenue reserve.

Examination of the development, position and performance of the activities of the Group

The Group recorded a loss of USD 7 469 thousand compared to a loss of USD 56 636 thousand in the previous
year.

The loss is mainly a result of the continued decline in revenue due to the decrease in exports {(mostly because of
import ban due to avian influenza in the first quarter) and the fall of prices of eggs. This is compensated by the
income from government grants and incentives and the gain on exchange which is mainly a result of the
retranslation of long-term bond liabilities.

The Group’s total assets also decreased to USD 512 781 thousand from USD 529 491 thousand mainly due to
Ukrainian Hryvnia devaluation.

Future development
The Management of the Group is focused on implementing its targets and sirategy despite the challenging
conditions in the domestic and export markets. A recent positive development is the EU approval to start exporting

shell eggs in that region.

Additionally, the Company and its advisors continue to be engaged in discusions with various groups in relation
to its debt restructuring process which is a result of breach of covenants of its bonds and debt agreements with
several banks.

Dividends

Based on the results, the Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year (2016:
nil).



AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED
Management Report (cont.)

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are disclosed in notes 35 and 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The economic situation in Ukraine has significantly deteriorated since 2014 after the annexation of Crimean
peninsula by the Russian Federation (further — the RF), the event that was recognized by neither Ukraine nor the
World community. This development has lead to substantial deterioration of relations between Ukraine and the
RF. The Crimea annexation has spread the pressure throughout the Eastern regions of Ukraine (mostly Donetsk
Oblast’ and Lugansk Oblast’). In May 2014, the social unrest fueled by the RF, has grown into a military conflict
between self-proclaimed Donetsk and Lugansk People’s Republics and Ukrainian troops. The military conflict
has not been resolved yet. The Donetsk Oblast” and Lugansk Oblast’ are partly controlled by self-proclaimed

Donetsk and Lugansk People’s Republics. Ukrainian authorities are incapable of enforcing the law on these
territories.

These events have led to the disappearance of economic links between Ukraine and the RF, the key export
destination for many Ukrainian industries. Ukraine has lost control over large mining companies concentrated in
the East of the country, which significantly decreased the inflow of foreign currency. Eventually, the national
GDP has dropped, public finances have eroded, the national currency has suffered severe devaluation and the
credit rating of the sovereign debt has continued to deteriorate. The newly elected Government of Ukraine had no
financial power to avoid the economic downfall in years 2014-2015. Minimal international reserves and exhausted
government accounts have forced the government to introduce administrative anti-crisis tools. The National Bank
of Ukraine has introduced currency restrictions: conversion limits, the requirement to convert 75% of foreign
currency revenue into national currency, abroad dividend payment ban, ban on early repayment of foreign loans,
cash withdrawal limitations. Such restrictions have limited the abilities of Ukrainian companies and banks to lend
and borrow money on domestic and international markets.

It is hard to foresee the eventual outcome of the conflict with the RF and the Ukrainian economic crisis. In case
of resumption of hostilities in the East of Ukraine, the government will be forced to increase military spending
and face another period of economic turbulence. To date, we can conclude the Ukrainian government has managed
to stabilize the economy. In years 2016-2017 the GDP growth was 2,3% and 2% respectfully (the best growth
indicator since 2012). The administrative restrictions are being gradually lifted. The law on currency regulation
enters into force in 2018; it is designed to liberalize the currency market and stimulate foreign economic activities.
Despite the floating exchange rate introduced on the IMF’s demand, national currency is rather stable. There are
signs of recovery from deep economic crisis of years 2014-2015.

The management of the Group takes all the necessary steps to support the financial stability of the Group in current
circumstances. Despite the first signs of economic recovery, we are still suffering from significant devaluation of
national currency. The value of UAH has decreased by 3,5 times since the beginning of the military conflict in
early 2014. This was followed by the drop in the demand on domestic market ignited by the deterioration of
purchasing power of Ukrainians.

That is why we look to the future with cautious optimism. We understand that it will take several years to recover
from crisis. This consolidated financial report reflects current Management’s view on the influence of the
Ukrainian business environment on the financial standing of the Group. The future developments in Ukrainian
economy can differ from the Management’s expectations. This financial report was not adjusted for any events
after the reporting period.

Share capital

There was no change in the share capital of the Company during the year.



AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED
Management Report (cont.)

Board of Directors

The members of the Board of Directors as at 31 December 2017 and at the date of this report are presented on
page 1.

There is no requirement in the Company's Articles of Association for the retirement of directors by rotation, thus
all Directors presently members of the Board continue in office.

There were no significant changes in the assignment of responsibilities and remuneration of the Board of
Directors.

The Directors are responsible for formulating, reviewing and approving the Company’s and its subsidiaries’
strategies, budgets, certain items of capital expenditures and senior personnel appointments. Although the
Company is listed on the London Stock Exchange, it is not subject to the UK Corporate Governance Code issued
by the Financial Reporting Council because it is a Cyprus incorporated company. Nevertheless, the Directors
intend to establish audit, nomination and remuneration committees and may form other committees as necessary
in order to improve corporate governance.

Events after the reporting period

The events after the reporting period are presented in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Branches

The Group did not operate through any registered branches during the year.

Related party balances and transactions

Disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditors

The independent auditors of the Company, KPMG Limited have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
A resolution giving authority to the Board of Directors to reappoint them and fix their remuneration will be

proposed at the next Annuval General Meeting of the Company.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Nataliya Vasylyuk
Chief Executive Officer

Nicosia, 22 March 2018



KPMG Limited

Chartered Accountants

14 Esperidon Street, 1087 Nicosia, Cyprus
P.O. Box 21121, 1502 Nicosia, Cyprus

T: +357 22 209000, F: +357 22 678200

Independent Auditors’ report
TO THE MEMBERS OF

AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AvangardCo Investments
Public Limited (the “Company”), and its subsidiaries (“the Group™) which are
presented on pages 11 to 77, and comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidaled statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then
enced, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (“"IFRS-EU™) and the requirements of the Cyprus
Companics Law, Cap. 113, as amended from time to time (the “Companies Law,
Cap. 1137).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
“Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements"
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants of the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants (“IESBA Code™), and the ethical requirements in Cyprus that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a busis for our opinion.
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Material uncertainly related to going concern

We draw attention to noles 2.4, 4.12, 35 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements which discuss the
political and economic environment in Ukraine and Management’s assessment that the Group will conlinue
as a going concern. The impact of the events described in notes 4.12, 35 and 38 on the Ukraine economy,
the operations of the Group and its ability to meet its obligations as they fall due cannot be determined. In
addition, the fact that the Group incurred a loss for the year amounting to USD7,5m and its current liabilities
as at 31 December 2017 exceeded its current assets by USD190m and that it is also in breach of covenanis
of its bonds and debt agreements with several banks, which triggered a debt restructuring process, may
indicate an uncertainty as to the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matlers are those matters that, in our professional j udgment were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial slatements of the current period. These matlers were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements, as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of biological assets
Refer to note 6 (biological assets) and to note 38 (fair values) to the consolidated financial statements.

The key audit matier How the matter was addressed in our audit
The Group’s biological assets consist | Our audit procedures in this area included, among others:

of poultry, which is measured at fair L . .
value less costs o sell. As at 31 - considering the appropriateness of the valuation

December 2017 the total fair value of methodology by reviewing the valuation expert’s report
biological assets is USD19,9m on the methodology used by the Group and agreeing its
consistency with IFRS. The competencies of the expert
were also assessed;

Estimating the fair value is a complex

process and required the use of - evaluating the operating effectiveness of controls over
valuation models which employed the estimation of the number of poultry;

discounted cash flow techniques. The - evaluating the Group’s inputs used in calculating the
inputs to the aforementioned valuation estimated cash flows such as egg prices, inflation rate etc.
mode! required a number of through observation to internal supporting documentation
significant judgments and estimates and their reasonableness against external data;

and uses a number of inputs from - invelving our own valualion specialist to assist in

mostly inlernal sources. Such evaluating the appropriateness of the discounted rate
estimates and judgments are subject (o used, which included observing market data from market
an inherent risk of error. sources such as bond yields, risk premiums, inflation
Consequently, we have determined the rates etc;

valuation of biological assets o be a - testing the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash
key audit matter. flow model;

= cvaluating the adequacy of the financial statements
disclosures, including disclosures of key assumptions,
judgments and sensitivities.
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Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
management reporl, the corporate governance statement and the corporate social responsibility statement,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, except as required by the Companies Law, Cap.113.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
malerially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a malerial
misstalement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

With regards to the corporate social responsibility statement we have nothing to report.

With regards to the management report and the corporate governance statement, our report is presented in
the “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements " section.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRS-EU and the requirements of the Companies Law, Cap. 113, and
for such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary (o enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Direclors is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless there is an intention 1o ejther liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bul is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a malerial misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Ildentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial slatements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and oblain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting [rom fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
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¢  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriale in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an apinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

* Evalvate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw allention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, 1o modifly our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and evenis in a manner that achieves true and fair view.

¢  Obtain sufficient appropriate audil evidence regarding the financial information of the entities business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit apinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matiers, the planned scope and liming
of the audil and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

'We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore they key audit matters.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Other regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the requirements of Article 10(2) of EU Regulation 537/2014 we provide the following
information in our Independent Auditors’ Report, which is required in addition to the requirements of
[SAs.

Date of our appointment and period of engagement

We were first appointed auditors of the Group by the General Meeting of the Company’s members on 29
August 2011. Our appointment has been renewed annually by sharcholder resolution. Our total

uninterrupted period of engagement is 7 years covering the periods ending 31 December 2011 to 31
December 2017,
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Consistency of the additional report 1o the Audit Committee

Although there is a legal requirement to have an Audit Committee, by the date of our report the Group did
not manage (o establish one. The additional report was presented to Those Charge with Governance on the
27" of February 2018 and our audit opinion is consistent with it.

Provision of non-audit services (“NAS™)

We have not provided any prohibited NAS referred to in Article 5 of EU Regulation 537/2014 as applied
by Section 72 of the Auditors Law of 2017, L.53(1)2017, as amended from time to time (“Law
L53(1)/20177).

For the period to which our statutory audit relates, in addition to the audit, we have provided Tax Services
amounlting to USD600 to the Group which are not disclosed in the management report or in the consolidated
financial statements.

Other legal requirements

Pursuant to the additional requirements of law L.53(1)2017, and based on the work undertaken in the course
of our audit, we report the following:

*  Inour opinion, the management report, the preparation of which is the responsibility of the Board of
Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Law, Cap. 113,
and the information given is consistent with the consolidated financial statements.

¢ In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the business and the Company’s environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the management
report.

¢  Inour opinion, the information included in the corporate governance statement in accordance with the
requiremenis of subparagraphs (iv) and (v) of paragraph 2(a) of Article 151 of the Companies Law,
Cap. 113, and which is included in the Group’s Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Law, Cap, 113, and is consistent with the consolidated financial
stalements.

¢ In our opinion, the corporate governance statement includes all information referred to in
subparagraphs (i), (ii), (iii), (vi) and (vii) of paragraph 2(a) of Articic 151 of the Companies Law, Cap.

3

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in
accordance with Section 69 of Law L53(1)/2017, and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion,

_~—accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whose knowledge this report
may come to.

for and on behalf of

KPMG Limited

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Auditors
14 Esperidon Street

1087 Nicosia

Cyprus

22 March 2018



AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Consolidated statement of financial position
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Non-current biological assets
Deferred tax assets

Held to maturity investments
Other non-current assets
Non-current assets

Inventories

Current biclogical assets

Trade accounts receivable, net

Prepaid income tax

Prepayments and other current assets, net
Taxes recoverable and prepaid

Cash and cash equivalents

Current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY

Share capital

Share premium

Reserve capital

Retained earnings

Effect of translation into presentation currency
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Long-term bond liabilities
Long-term loans

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred income
Dividends payable
Long-term finance lease
Non-current liabilities

Short-term bond liabilities

Current portion of non-current liabilities
Trade payables

Other accounts payable

Current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

=)

11

12

13
13
13

15
14
18

15
17
19
20

31 December 2017

11

31 December 2016

334 640 357821
3732 14273
83662 5663
2840 5700

5 5

349 879 383 462

56 301 62 144
16 160 7755
45376 40 628
35 41
8939 14 412
17 849 8479
18 242 12 570
162 902 146 029
512 781 529 491
836 836

201 164 201 164

115858 115 858

857723 864 457

(1 099 825} {1053 923)
75756 128 392
8 765 10418
84 521 138 810
- 219014
42750 93 924
308 351

1 002 1123
29 542 29 542
- 3

73 602 343 957
231612 -
91760 31224
2298 3062
28 988 12 438

354 658 46 724

428 260 390 681

512 781 329 491

On 22 March 2018 the Board of Directors of AvangardCo Investments Public Limited approved and authorised

these consolidated financial statements for issue.

Nataliya Vasylyuk
Director, CEO

The notes on pages 16 to 77 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Iryna Melnyk
Director, CFO



AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)

12

for the year ended

Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Revenue 22 127 887 191 304
Loss from revaluation of biological assets at fair value 6 (3 108) (2232)
Cost of sales 23 {134 916) {175 875)
GROSS (LOSS)/PROFIT (10 137) 13197
General administrative expenses 25 (8 955) (7 886)
Distribution expenses 26 (7 746) (8 558)
Income from government grants and incentives 30.1 19 242 98
Income from special VAT treatment 30,2 - 5376
Other operating income/(expenses) 27 3 804 (17 107)
LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES {3 792) (14 880)
Finance income 29 1982 2825
Finance costs 28 (33 699) (31 280)
Losses on exchange 24 729 (16 622)
NET FINANCE COSTS {6 988) (45077}
LOSS BEFORE TAX (10 780) (59 957)
Income tax credit 18 3311 3321
LOSS FOR THE YEAR {7 469) (56 636)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss
Effect from translation into presentation currency {46 820) (39 609)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (54 289) (96 245)
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company (6 734) (56 978)
Non-controlling interests (735) 342
(7 469) {56 636)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company (52 636) (92 816)
Non-controlling interests {1 653) (3 428}

{54 289) (96 245)
Loss per share
Basic and diluted (USD) 34 (1) (9)

The notes on pages 16 to 77 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Consolidated statement of cash flows
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before income tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Change in allowance for irrecoverable amounts
Gain on disposal of current assets

Loss/(income) on disposal of non current assets
Impairment of current assets

Effect of fair value adjustments on biological assets
Gains realised from accounts payable written-off
Amortization of deferred income on government grants
Discount bonds amortization

Discount on VAT government bonds amortization
Interest income

Interest payable on loans and bonds

Income from received government grants VAT
(Gains)/losses on exchange

Operating (loss)/profit before working capital
changes

Increase in trade receivables

Decrease in prepayments and other current assets
(Increase)/decrease in taxes recoverable and prepaid
Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease in deferred income

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables

Increase in biological assets

Decrease in finance leases

Increase/(decrease) in other accounts payable

Cash generated from operations

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments and receipts - property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Note

27
27
27

27

for the year ended

14

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
(10 780) (59957
15 411 15 657
(4 488) 18 582
(31 (14)
30 (150)
138 709
3108 2232
(400) (262)
(1) (98)
2304 2 096
{1 088) {1 449)
(894) {1376)
31327 29 186
(19 151) -
(14 537) 16 622
858 21778
{4 023) {5 802)
8 843 224
(6 250) 7134
4026 {11 945)
8} (7)
(306) 351
(1579) (196)
(3 (39)
6316 (10 486)
7 881 1012
(3 504) (4 224)
(19 (43)
4 357 (3255)
(1 585) (12 981)
- 779
1032 2 829
(553) {9 373)

The notes on pages 16 to 77 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Consolidated statement of cash flows (cont.)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)

for the year ended

Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New loans received - 50208
Repayment of loans - (51 952)
Interest paid for bonds issued - (5247)
Net cash used in financing activities - {6 991)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3804 {19 619)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 12 570 31307
Effect from translation into presentation currency 1 868 882
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12 18 242 12 570

The notes on pages 16 to 77 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)

1. General information

AvangardCo Investments Public Limited (the “Company™) was incorporated as a limited liability company on 23
QOctober 2007 in accordance with the provisions of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113, under the name of
Ultrainvest Limited. On 8 July 2009, the Registrar of Companies in Cyprus issued a certificate to the effect that
the Company was re-registered as a public limited company and changed its name to AvangardCo Investrnents
Public Limited. The Company was listed at London Stock Exchange Main Market on 6 May 2010,

The Company's registered office is at 3 Anexartisias & Kyriakou Matsi, 3040 Limassol, Cyprus.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2017 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together with the Company referred to as the *“Group”).

The ultimate parent which prepare consolidated financial statements is UkrlandFarming PLC whose registered
office is the same as the Company’s.

In 2009 the principal owner of AvangardCo Investments Public Limited reorganised the Group, as a result of
which AvangardCo Investments Public Limited became the holding company of an agricultural group of
agricultural enterprises, which in the past were under the common ownership and control of this owner. The
restructuring was carried out by the transfer of direct interest in the Group's companies. The restructuring was
undertaken to achieve legal consolidation of control over agricultural companies of the Group. The reorganisation
did not affect the principal activities of the Group.

The history of "Avangard" began with the acquisition by the principal owner of the first poultry farm "Avangard"
located in the Ivano-Frankivsk region of Ukraine. Subsequently, to supply the poultry farm with growing birds,
the subsidiary "Avangard-Agro" was established. In 2004 a concept of development of this business line was

designed, as a result of which in 2005-2009 other major enterprises of agrarian industry in Ukraine joined the
Group.

The Group's activities cover all the links of the value chain: from production of combined feed, maintenance and
breeding of chickens to production and sale of eggs and egg products. As at 31 December 2017 the production
facilities of the Group include 32 poultry facilities (consisting of 19 egg laying farms, 10 farms for growing young
laying hens and 3 breeder farms), 6 fodder mills, 3 long-term egg storage facilities and 1 plant for manufacture of
egg products. This vertically-integrated structure of the Group allows processing of approximately 84% of its own
fodder. The Group's activities cover almost zall the territory of Ukraine. Due to the operating environment in
Ukraine, the companies of the Group which have been affected and are not operational are described in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

In order to build a vertically-integrated group, reduce business risk and gain additional profit due to synergies, the
Group acquired a hen breeding concern. This ensures breeding of the required number of high quality daily
chickens and their timely delivery to factories.

The construction of new full cycle egg production facilities, fully automated, in compliance with European
standards of quality is an integral part of the Group's growth strategy.



AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)

1. General information (cont.)

17

The Group’s subsidiaries all of which are incorporated in Ukraine, their principal activities and the effective

ownership interests are as follows:

Ownership Ownership
Company name l::i':ic: i[:al 150?;::;{1:; Interest (%o) 31 interest (%) 31
Y g December 2017 December 2016
PISC Agroholding Avangard Keeping of Ukmaine 98,00% 98,00%
LLC Yuzhnaya - Holding technical Ukraine 100,00% 100,00%
laying hen,
PPB LLC Pryiseccompleks production and | Ukraine 100,00% 100,00%
. selling of epgs .
PSPC Interbusiness Ukraine 100,00% 100,00%
SC Avangard-Agro of PJSC Agroholding Avangard Ukraine 98.00% 98.00%
SC Ptakhohospodatstvo Donetske of PSPC Interbusiness Ukraine 100,00% 100,00%
LLC Slovyany . Ukmaine 90,00% 90,00%
Incubation
SC Ptakhohospodarstvo Lozuvatske of Avangardco Investments Public {production
Limited and sale of Ukraine 1 00.00% 1 00.00%
. day-old chick), . o, o,
SC Zorya of PJSC Agroholding Avangard farming of Ukraine 98,00% 98.00%
SC Ptakhofabryka Chervonyi Prapor Poultry, of PISC Ptakhohospodarstve young poultry
ChervoniyPrapor for sale Ukraine 98,00% 98,00%
SC Ptakhohospodarstvo Yuzhnaya Holding of LLC Yuzhnaya Holding Ukmine 100,00% 100,00%
SC Puakhogopodarstvo Volnovaske of PSPC Interbusiness Uknaine 100,00% 100,00%
SC Ptakhohospodarstve Chomobaivske of PISC Agroholding Avangard Ukraine 98,00% 98,00%
LLC Rohatyn-Korm Ukraine 100,00% 100,00%
PJSC Trade Avangard Agro (PJSC Vuhlehirskyi Eksperementalnyi
Kombikormovyi Zavod) Production and | _Ukraine 100,60% 100,00%
, . . . selling of : .
PJISC Volnovaskyi Kombinat Khliboproduktiv animal feed Ukraine 99,00% 99,00%
LLC Kamyanets-Podilsky Kombikormoviy Zavod Ukraine 98.00% 98,00%
LLC Pershe Travnya Kombikormoviy Zavod Ukraine 98.00% 98,00%
Processing of
eggs and
selling of egg
LLC Imperovo Foods products Ukraine 96,00% 96,00%
Rendering
services under
guarantee
LLC Agramyi Holding Avangard agreements Ukmine 100,00% 100,00%
LLC Torgiveniniy Dim Avangard Rental services | ykmine 99,00% 99,00%
LLC "GENERAL KONSTRAKSHYN" Ukraine 98,00% 98,00%
LLC "LOHISTYK AGROTRADE" Ukraine 100,00% 100,00%
LLC "REMTREYDSTANDART" Ukraine 08,00% 98.00%
LLC "COMPANY NEW REGION" Ukraine 98,00% 98.00%
LLS "PRIME LEADER" Ukraine 98,00% 98,00%
LLC "CITY REGION" Ukraine 98,00% 98,00%
Assets holding ]
LLC "FORVARDTRANS" companies Ukraine 98,00% 98,00%
| LLC "UNITED LOHISTYK" Ukraine 98,00% 98,00%
LLC "AGROTRADE BUSINESS" Ukmaine 98.00% 98,00%
LLC "KOMERTSBUDPLAST" Ukraine 98,00% 98.00%
LLC "AGROMASH-ZAHID" Ukraine 98,00% 98,00%
LLC "STC-INVESTMENTS" Ukraine 98,00% 98,00%
LLC "TRANSMAGISTRAL" Ukraine 93,00% 93,00%
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AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)

1. General information (cont.)

The parent company of the Group is AvangardCo Investments Public Limited, registered in Cyprus, with an issued
share capital of 6 387 185 ordinary shares as at 31 December 2017 with nominal value of € 0,10 per share.

The shares were distributed as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Ownership Number of Ownership

2L BTG ELC interest (%) shares interest (%)
Omtron Limited 1 848 575 28,9% 1 848 575 28,9%
Tanchem Limited 926 280 14,5% 926 280 14,5%
Mobco Limited 1 5 1 -
BNY (Nominees) Limited 1437 500 22,5% 1437 500 22,5%
UkrLandFarming Plc 2174825 34,1% 2174 825 34,1%
Other 4 - 4 -
6 387 185 100,0% 6387185 100,0%

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 the interests in Omtron Limited and Tanchem Limited
beneficially owned by UkrLandFarming Plc were as follows:

Ownership interest (%) Owanership interest (%)

as at 31 December 2017 as at 31 December 2016
Omtron Limited 100% 100%
Tanchem Limited 100% 100%

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 the direct interests in Mobco Limited and UkrLandFarming Ple
beneficially owned by Oleg Bakhmatyuk ("the beneficial owner" hereinafter) were as follows:

Ownership interest (%) Ownership interest (%)

as at 31 December 2017 as at 31 December 2016
Mobco Limited 100% 100%
UkrLandFarming Pic 95% 95%

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (EU) and the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law,
Cap. 113. and are for the year ended 31 December 2017.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the biological

assets which are measured at fair value and bonds, loans and investments held to maturity which are measured at
amortised cost.
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AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation (cont.)
2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of all companies of the Group is the Ukrainian Hryvnia ("UAH") except in the case of
the Cyprus parent company, AvangardCo Investments Public Limited, whose functional currency changed from
UAH to Euro ("EUR") as from 1 January 2014. Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of
the Group’s companies are treated as transactions in foreign currencies. The Group's management decided to use
US dollar ("USD") as the presentation currency for financial and management reporting purposes. Exchange
differences arising are classified as equity and transferred to the translation reserve.

2.4 Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the going concern basis, which assumes the
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the course of ordinary economic activity. Renewals of the
Group’s assets, and the future activities of the Group, are significantly influenced by the current and future
economic environment in Ukraine. The Board of Directors and Management of the Group are making every effort
to implement their targets and strategy despite the challenging conditions in the domestic and export markets.
Additionally they are closely monitoring the Group’s cash flows and capital base position and have reviewed the
current situation and environment of the Group as described in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017 the Group had overdue principal and interest payments and breached covenants of debt
agreements with several banks and the Eurobonds. The Group continue its constructive negotiations with banks
and representatives from the Eurobond holders with a positive intent to reach an agreement with acceptable terms
for both parties that will ensure the strengthening of the financial position of the Group maximising its potential
for strong returns in a world economy that is returning to a more positive growth potential compared with a rather
stagnant past few years.

The Board of Directors strongly believes that the Group has profitability potential which will enable holders to
positively consider the restructuring plan of the Group.

For the next 12 months the management is doing all relevant efforts to improve both the liquidity but also the
profitability and capital base of the Group. These consclidated financial statements do not comprise any
adjustments in case of the the Group’s inability to continue as a going concern.

2.5 Standards and interpretations

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations as adopted by
the European Union (EU)

As from 1 January 2017, the Group adopted all changes to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by EU which are relevant to its operations. This adoption did not have a material effect on the financial
statements of the Group.

The following Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective
for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2017. Those which may be relevant to the Group are set out below.
The Group does not plan to adopt these Standards early.
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AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation (cont.)
2.5 Standards and interpretations (cont.)
(i) Standards and Interpretations adopted by the EU

» Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 (IFRS 1 and IAS 28)).
IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).
IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018).

o [FRS 15 (Clarifications) “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018).

o [IFRS 4 (Amendments) “Applying IFRS ¢ Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts” (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

s IFRS 16 “Leases” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

Preliminary impact of IFRS 9 on the Group

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” sets out requirements for recognizing and measuring financial assets and financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces IAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: recognition and Measurement”.

The new impairement requirements is expected to have an impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements from the implementation of IFRS 9. Management is not yet able to provide quantitative information
about the expected impact since the Group is in the pricess of building and testing models, assembling data and
calibrating the impairment stage transfer criteria. The impact is also dependent on finalising the classification

assessment and the current circumstances. Management expects loss allowances under IFRS 9 to be in the same
level as LAS 39.

IFRS 9 Implementation Programme

‘The Group expects that it will be in a position to provide quantitative information on the impact of the transition
to IFRS 9 on its financial position and performance in its next reported consolidated financial statements (for the
6 months ending 30 June 2018).

(ii) Standards and Interpretations not yet adopted by the EU

e [FRS 2 (Amendments) “Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions” (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

o IAS 40 (Amendments) “Transfers of Investment Property” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018).

e TIFRIC 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

o [FRS 9 (Amendments) “Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

¢ IAS 19 (Amendments) “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement” (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019).

e [IAS 28 (Amendments) “Long-term Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

s Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2015-2017 Cycle (effective for annual periods beginning on or afier 1 January
2019).
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AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation (cont.)
2.5 Standards and interpretations {cont.)
(ii) Standards and Interpretations not yet adopted by the EU (cont.)

e [FRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019).

¢ [IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” {effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021).

The Board of Directors expects that the adoption of these financial reporting standards in future periods will not
have a material effect on the financial statements of the Group.

3. Significant accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently for all the years presented in these consolidated
financial statements. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by all companies of the Group.

3.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the parent company AvangardCo
Investments Public Limited and the financial statements of the companies controlled by the Company as at 31
December 2017,

Transactions under common control

Consolidation of companies including organisations and entities under common control requires that all the
organisations and enterprises being consolidated are controlled by one and the same party or parties, both before
consolidation and after it, and this control is not transitory.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity which is controlled by another entity. An investor controls an investee when the investor
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Loss of control

On the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling
interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss
of control is recognized in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previously owned subsidiary,
then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an
equity-accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.

Combinations of businesses under common control

A business combination in which the combining entities are ultimately controlled by the same individual both
before and after the combination and the control is not transitory is accounted using the pooling of interests

accounting principles (otherwise known as "carry over accounting” or "predecessor accounting"). The principles
of predecessor accounting are:



AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.1 Basis of consolidation (cont.)
Combinations of businesses under common control (cont,)

e The Group does not restate assets and liabilities to their fair values. Instead the Group incorporates the assets
and liabilities at the amounts recorded in the books of the acquired company (the predecessor carrying values)
adjusted only to achieve harmonisation of accounting policies.

e No goodwill arises in predecessor accounting. Predecessor accounting may lead to differences in
consolidation, for example the consideration given may differ from the aggregate book value of the assets and
liabilities (as of the date of the transaction) of the acquired entity. Such differences are included in equity in
retained earnings.

¢ The consolidated financial statements incorporate the acquired entity's results as if both entities (acquirer and
acquiree) had always been combined from the date that common control was achieved. Consequently, the
consolidated financial statements reflect both entities' full periods results, even though the business
combination may have occurred part of the way through the period. In addition, the corresponding amounts
for the previous period also reflect the combined results of both entities, even though the transaction did not
occur until the current period.

Acquisitions of business not under common control

The purchase method is applied for the consolidation of subsidiaries being acquired. On acquisition, the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are measured at fair value on the acquisition date, irrespective
of the extent of any non controlling interest. Non-controlling interests are reflected proportionally to fair value of
cost of recognised assets and liabilities.

If necessary, adjustments are entered into the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies
used into compliance with the accounting policies used by other companies of the Group.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-Group transactions and balances are eliminated from the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
profits and losses, from transactions between the Group’s Companies are aiso subject to elimination.

Non-controlling interests (NCI)

NCI is represented by interest in the subsidiaries not owned by the Group. NCI in subsidiaries as at the reporting
period is the proportion of fair value of the relevant subsidiaries' identified assets and liabilities attributable to
those non-controlling interest as at the date of acquisition, together with their share of changes in their equity after
the date of acquisition. Equity attributable to owners of non-controlling interest is reported as a separate item in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations (other than those of businesses under common control) are accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each
business combination, the acquirer measures the non controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed.



AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.1 Basis of consolidation (cont.)
Business combinations and goodwill (cont.)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date through profit and loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognised in accordance
with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is classified as equity, it shall not be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the consideration transferred over the Group’s net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group’s cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within the unit that is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying value of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed in such case is measured based on
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

3.2 Foreign currency translation

{a) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency of each company included into the
Group, at the rates ruling at the reporting period. Foreign exchange gains and losses, arising from transactions in
foreign currency, and also from translation of monetary assets and liabilities into the functional currency of each
company included into the Group at the rate ruling at the end of the year, are recognised to profit or loss.

The exchange rates used for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements, are presented as follows:

Weighted average Weighted average
Currency 31 December  for the year ended 31 December  for the year ended
2017 31 December 2017 2016 31 December 2016
US dollar to
Ukrainian Hryvnia 28,0672 26,5947 27,1909 25,5458

Euro 0,8379 0,3861 0,9567 0,9023
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.2 Foreign currency translation

{a} Transactions and balances (cont.)

The foreign currencies may be freely convertible to the territory of Ukraine at the exchange rate which is close to
the exchange rate established by the National Bank of Ukraine. At the moment, the Ukrainian Hryvnia is not a
freely convertible currency outside of Ukraine.

(b) Presentation currency
The financial results and position of each subsidiary are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(1) At each reporting period of financial statements all the assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate
of the National Bank of Ukraine at that reporting period;

(2) Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates (except for the cases when such average
exchange rate is not a reasonably approximate value reflecting cumulative influence of all exchange rates

prevailing at the date of transaction, in which case income and expenses are translated at the exchange rates at the
date of transaction);

(3) All exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.
3.3 Property, plant and equipment
Initial recognition of property, plant and equipment (“PPE")

PPE is recognised by the Group as an asset only in a case, when:

e it is probable that the Group will receive certain future economic benefits;

o the historical cost can be assessed in a reliable way;

s it is intended for use during more than one operating cycle (usually more than 12 months).

After completion, PPE previously under construction is transferred to the relevant category of PPE.
Expenses afier the initial recognition of property, plant and equipment

Any subsequent expenses, increasing the future economic benefits from the asset, are treated as additions.
Otherwise, the Group recognises subsequent expenses as expenses of the period, in which they have been incurred.
The Group divides all expenses related to the property, plant and equipment, into the following types:

e current repairs and expenses for maintenance and technical service;

o capital refurbishment, including modernisation.

Subsequent measurement of property, plant and equipment

After initial recognition as an asset, the Group applies the model of accounting for the property, plant and
equipment at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation and any accumulated losses from impairment, taking
into account estimated residual values of such assets at the end of their useful lives. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing significant parts of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if
the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be

replaced from time to time, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific estimated useful
lives and depreciation, respectively.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)
3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.3 Property, plant and equipment (cont.)
Subsequent measurement of property, plant and equipment (cont.}
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying value of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are

recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives agreed upon with the technical personnel of the Group.

The estimated useful lives for the property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Land Not depreciated
Buildings and constructions 10-70 years
Machinery and equipment 5-25 years
Equipment for biological assets 5-30 years
Vehicles 5-15 years
Other equipment 3-10 years
Construction in progress Not depreciated

Depreciation methods, residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed at each reporting period and adjusted
if appropriate.

An asset is not depreciated during the first month of its availability for use. The acquired asset is depreciated

starting from the following month of the date it is available for use and depreciation is fully accumulated when
useful life terminates.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying value of the asset) is
included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment

At each reporting period the Group evaluates whether any indicators of possible impairment of an asset exist. If
the recoverable value of an asset or a group of assets within PPE is lower than their carrying (residual) value, the
Group recognises such asset or group of assets as impaired, and accrues a provision for impairment of the amount
of excess of the carrying value over the recoverable value of the asset. Impairment losses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Assets under construction and unistalled equipment

Assets under construction comprise costs directly related to construction of property, plant and equipment
including an appropriate allocation of directly attributable variable overheads that are incurred in construction.
Construction in progress is not depreciated. Depreciation of the construction in progress, on the same basis as for
other property, plant and equipment items, commences when the assets are available for use, i.e. when they are in
the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the
Management.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.4 Financial instruments
(i)Non-derivative financial assets

The Group classifies its non-derivative financial assets as loans and accounts receivable, available-for-sale
financial assets and held-to-maturity investments. The classification depends on the purposes for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management takes decision concerning the classification at initial recognition and
reviews such classification for reliability at each reporting period.

(a) Loans and accounts receivable

Loans and accounts receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are
not quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. Loans and receivables comprise of cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other accounts receivable.

Loans issued by the Group are financial assets resulting from delivering cash to the borrower. Loans issued are
accounted for at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

(b) Available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets, are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or
are not classified into any other category of financial assets. Available for sale financial assets are recognised at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Investments which Management plans to hold for an indefinite period of time, and which may be sold to improve
liquidity or due to changes in interest rates, are classified as available for sale financial assets. These assets are
included into non-current assets unless the Group has an obvious intention to hold these assets for a period less
than twelve months from the reporting period, and if selling these assets will not result from the need of increasing
the working capital, in which case they will be included into current assets. Subsequent to initial recognition
available for sale financial assets are recorded at fair value through equity and changes therein, other than
impairment losses and foreign currency differences on available for sale debt instruments that are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Impairment loss on available for sale financial assets is recognised by reclassifying the losses accumulated in
the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss.

The cumulative loss that is reclassifled from equity to profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost
net of any principal repayments and amortization and the current fair value, less impairment loss recognized
previously in profit or loss. Changes in cumnulative impairment losses attributable to the application of the effective
interest method are reflected as a component of interest income. If in a subsequent period the fair value of an
impaired available for sale debt security increases and the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized then the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of reversal
recognized in profit or loss. However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired available for sale
equity security is recognized in other comprehensive income.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.4 Financial instruments (cont.)
(¢} Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that an
entity intends and is able to hold to maturity and that do not meet the definition of loans and receivables and are
not designated on initial recognition as assets at fair value through profit or loss or as available for sale. Held-to-
maturity investments are measured at amortised cost. If an entity sells a held-to-maturity investment other than in
insignificant amounts or as a consequence of a non-recurring, isolated event beyond its control that could not be
reasonably anticipated, all of its other held-to-maturity investments must be reclassified as available-for-sale for
the current and next two financial reporting years. Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost.

Initial recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. The best confirmation of fair
value at initial recognition is transaction price. Gains or losses on initial recognition are reflected only if the
difference between fair value and transaction price is confirmed by other actual and regular market transactions
carried out with the same instruments or with such estimation of which the valuation technique is based on open
market data.

All acquisitions and sales of financial instruments which are to be carried out on a regular basis, set by regulations
or marketing agreements (acquisitions and sales carried out under regular transaction procedures) are recognised
at the date of transaction.

Change in value of an asset which is measured at fair value between one date of committing to purchase the assets
and settlement date, is recognised either in profit or loss (for assets classified at fair value through profit or loss),
or in equity (for assets classified as available-for-sale).

Principles of fair value measurement

Fair value of financial instruments is based on their market price prevailing at the reporting period without
deduction of transaction costs.

In case the market price is not available, the fair value of an instrument is determined using pricing or discounted
cash flow models.

When using a discounted cash flow model, the determination of future cash flows is based on the best estimates
of management, and the discount rate is represented by the market interest rate for similar instruments prevailing
at the reporting period. When using pricing models, the inputs are based on average market data prevailing at the
reporting period.

Subsequent measurement

After the initial recognition all available for sale investments, are measured at fair value except for any instruments
which are not traded on an active market and for which fair value cannot be measured reliably; such instruments
are measured at cost plus transactions costs less impairment losses.

Loans and accounts receivable and held-to-maturity investments, are measured at amortised cost less impairment
losses. Amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method. Premium and discount, including initial

transaction costs, are included in the carrying amount of the corresponding instrument and amortised using the
effective interest method.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.4 Financial instruments (cont.)
(i)Non-derivative financial assets (cont.)
(¢c) Held-to-maturity investments (cont.)
Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting period the Group measures whether there is any objective evidence of impairment of financial
assets or group of financial assets. A financial asset or group of financial assets is considered to be impaired if
and only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred afer initial
recognition of the asset and that loss event, had an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Impairment evidence may comprise indicators that a debtor or group of debtors is in significant financial
difficulties, is unable to repay the debt or makes inaccurate payments of interest or principal amount of debt, and
also the probability of bankruptcy or any other financial reorganisation. In addition, such evidence includes other
observable data indicating a decrease in expected cash flows from the financial asset which is subject to reliable
measurement, for example, an overdue debt. For an investment in an equity security, a significant prolonged
decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group considers evidence of impairment for a financial asset measured at amortised cost at both a specific
asset and collective level. All individually significant assets are measured for specific impairment. Those found
not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not
yet identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping
together assets with similar risks characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management's judgment as to whether current economic

and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested by historical
trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial assets at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted using the asset's original effective
interest rate. Losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans and
receivables. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognized. When an event occurring after at the
impairment was recognized causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss.

Derecognition

The financial assets are derecognised if the term of contractual rights for cash flows from financial assets expires,
or the Group transfers all the significant risks and benefits from asset ownership.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.4 Financial instruments (cont.)
(ii)Non-derivative financial liabilities
The Group initially recognizes debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that they originated.
All other financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date which is the date that the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provision for the instrument. The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into
the other financial liability category. Such financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less any directly

attributable transaction costs using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, bonds liabilities, bank overdrafts and trade and other
payables.

(a) Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings are financial liabilities of the Group resulting from raising borrowings. Loans and
borrowings are classified as short-term liabilities except for cases when the Group has vested right to defer the
liabilities at least by 12 months from the reporting period.

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value adjusted for directly related transaction costs in case of
loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

Trade and other accounts payable initially recognised at fair value is subsequently accounted for at amortized
value using the effective interest method.

Borrowings initially recognised at fair value of liability net of transaction costs are subsequently reported at

amortised cost; any difference between the amount of received funds and amount of repayment is reported within
interest expenses during the period in which borrowings were received under the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The financial liabilities are derecognised if the term of contractual obligations expires, contractual obligations
fulfilled or agreement cancelled.

3.5 Bonds
Initial recognition

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the bond.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition bonds are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.5 Bonds (cont.)

Derecognition

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. In this case, the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

3.6 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined as the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion and preliminary estimated distribution and selling costs.
The cost of inventories is based on the first-in-first-out (FIFO) principle.

The cost of inventories comprises all expenses for acquisition, processing and other expenses incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of work in progress and finished goods includes
the cost of raw materials, direct labour and other production costs, and also corresponding part of production
overheads.

The Group regularly reviews inventories to determine whether there are any indicators of damage, obsolescence,
slow movement, or a decrease in net realisable price. When such events take place, the amount by which
inventories are impaired, is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of inventories

At each reporting period, the Group assesses the necessity to impair obsolete and surplus inventory and supplies.

Cost of inventories may be irrecoverable if the realisable value for such inventories has decreased due to their
damage, whole or partial obsolescence or resulting from changes in market prices. Cost of inventories may be
irrecoverable if possible costs for completion or sale have increased.

Raw and other materials in inventories are not written-off below cost, if finished goods, in which they will be
included, will be sold at cost or above. However, when decrease in price for raw materials indicates that cost of
finished goods will exceed the net realisable value, raw materials are written-off to net realisation values,

3.7 Biological assets
The following groups of biological assets are distinguished by the Group:

e replacement poultry (non-current asset);
= commercial poultry (current asset);
¢ other biological assets (current asset);

(a) Non current assets - assets with useful life of more than a year. Age of livestock poultry is between 1 - 194
days old.

(b) Current assets - assets with useful life within one year. Age of livestock poultry is between 195 — 560 days
old.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)

3.7 Biological assets (cont.)

The Group performs a biological asset measurement at initial recognition and as at each reporting period, at fair
value less any estimated expenses for sale, except in the cases, were fair value cannot be determined reliably.
Costs to sell include all costs that would be necessary to sell the assets, including transportation costs.

The difference between the fair value less estimated costs to sell is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group includes the following elements into cost of laying hens in the process of growing:
Animal feed

» Depreciation of property, plant and equipment related to the process of growing
e Wages and salaries of personnel related to the process of growing
» Other expenses directly related to the process of growing

Determination of the fair value of biological assets

Due to an absence of an active market for laying hens in Ukraine, to determine the fair value of biological assets,
the Group uses the discounted value of the asset’s expected net cash flows.

Determination of the fair value of agricultural produce

Agricultural produce harvested from biological assets is measured at its fair value less estimated point-of-sale
costs at the point of harvest. A gain or loss arising on initial recognition of agricultural produce at fair value less
estimated point-of-sale costs is included in the profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks, cash in hand, cash in transit and issued letters of credit. The bank
deposits are held without a specific maturity, are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are
used by the Group in the managernent of its short term commitments.

3.9 Impairment of non-current assets

The Group assesses at each reporting period the carrying value of its non-current assets to determine whether
there is any objective evidence that non-current assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). If it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group shall determine the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset’s cash-generating unit),

The expected recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is the higher of the cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. In estimating value in use, the future cash flows are discounted to present
value using a pre-tax discount that reflects curent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.9 Impairment of non-current assets (cont.)

If the expected recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
value, the carrying value of the asset (or cash-generating unit) shall be reduced to its recoverable amount. That
reduction is an impairment loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued
asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease. If the impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the carrying value
of an asset {or cash-generating unit) increases to the revised and estimated amount of its recoverable amount,
where increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value which could be determined only in the case
where no impairment loss for an asset (or cash-generating unit) was recognised in the previous years. Reversal of
the impairment loss is recognised as profit immediately.

3.10 Value added tax (VAT)

There are two rates of value added taxes: 20% — on import and sales of goods and services in the temitory of
Ukraine and 0% - on export of goods and rendering of services and works outside Ukraine.

The VAT liability is equal to the total amount of VAT accrued during the reporting period and arises at the earlier
of goods shipment to the customer or at the date of receipt of payment from the client.

VAT credit is the amount by which a taxpayer is entitled to reduce his/her VAT liabilities in the reporting period.
The right to VAT credit arises on the earlier of the date of payment to supplier or the date of receipt of goods by
the company.

The Group’s entities apply the special VAT taxation treatment prescribed by the Tax Code of Ukraine, which
entered into force on 1 January 2011, regarding the agricultural activities, which provides preferential VAT
treatment to support agricultural producers. As from 1 January 2017 this regim was abolished.

For goods and services supplied at the 20% tax rate, revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of VAT
amount, unless:

- the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case the value added tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item as applicable;

-receivables and payables that are stated including the value added tax.

The Group classifies VAT recoverable arising from its operating activities and its capital expenditures. The
balance of VAT recoverable may be realised by the Group either through a cash refund from the state budget or
by set off against VAT liabilities with the state budget in future periods.

The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the consolidated statement of financial position.

3.11 Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCIL
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.11 Income tax (cont.)
Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting period. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss;

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised
except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting period.

Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current income.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.12 Revenue recognition

Revenue includes the amount of compensation received or to be received for realisation of products and services
in the course of the ordinary activities of the Group. Revenue is recognised net of value added tax, returns, trade
discounts and intragroup transactions.

Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists that the significant risks and rewards have been transferred
to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated cost and possible return of goods and
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the reporting period. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work performed.

3.13 Finance income/expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest bearing financial assets classified as
available-for-sale, interest income or expense is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying value of the financial asset or liability.
Interest income is included in finance income to the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.
Foreign currencies gain and loss are reported on a net basis as either a finance income or finance cost depending
on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position.

3.14 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at inception date: whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

A lease is classified as finance lease, when, according to lease terms, the lessee assumes all the significant risks
and benefits associated with ownership of the relevant assets. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Group as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the

Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.14 Leases (cont.)

Group as a lessor

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying value of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are eamed.

3.15 Distribution of dividends

The amount payable to the owners of the Company in the form of dividends is recognised as a liability in the
financial statements of the Group in the period the dividends were approved by the owners of the Company.

3.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset,
which necessarily requires significant time to be prepared for use in accordance with the group’s intentions or for
sale, are capitalised as the part of initial value of such asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in profit or
loss in the period they were incurred. Borrowing costs include interest payments and other expenses incurred by
the Group related to borrowings.

3.17 Government grants
Recognition of government grants
The Group recognises government grants when received.

The Group recognises the government grants as other operating income in the same periods as the corresponding
expenses, which they compensate, on a systematic basis:

 All grants, compensating the expenses of the preceding periods, shall be recognised by the Group in full in
the period of their receipt as other operating income;

e All grants, related to assets not depreciated, such as a land site, shall be correlated by the Group with the
expenses to fulfill the obligations. Where a grant in the form of provision of a land site is conditional on
construction of a building on the site, the Group divides the recognition of the grant as other operating income
over the whole useful life of the building;

» All grants, related to the amortised assets, shall be recognised by the Group as a decrease in the expenses for
amortisation during the periods, when the amortisation of these assets is accrued.

Accounting for government grants for agricultural activities
The Group recognises unconditional state grants related to biological activities as income only in cases when such

government grants are receivable. A contingent government grant, is recognised by the Group as income only
after the fulfilment of respective conditions.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.17 Government grants {cont.)
Return of the government granis

If subsidies are retumed partially or completely, the amount to be returned shall be deducted from the remaining
unused amount of the government subsidies. If an amount, exceeding the unused part of the government subsidies,

is to be returned, the Group shall immediately reflect the amount of such excess as the expenses in the reporting
period.

3.18 Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements. Such liabilities are disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, with the exception of when the probability of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed in the notes in such
cases when there is a possibility of receiving economic benefits.

3.19 Provisions

A provision is a liability of uncertain amount or timing. Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of comprehensive income net
of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost.

3.20 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The difference between the fair value of the consideration received and
the nominal value of share capital issued is transfered to share premium. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of ordinary shares, net of any tax effects, are recognised as a deduction from equity.

3.21 Operating segments

Segment results that are reported to the CEQ include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses
and tax assets and liabilities.

The Group is organised by reportable segments and this is the primary format for segmental reporting. Each
segment provides products or services which are subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other
reportable segments.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
3.22 Events after the reporting period

The Group adjusts the consolidated financial statements amounts if events after the reporting period demand
adjustments. Events after the reporting period requiring adjustments of the consolidated financial statements
amounts relate to the confirmation or contradiction of the circumstances prevailing at the reporting period, as well
as estimates and judgments of management, which are made under conditions of uncertainty and incompleteness
of information at the reporting period.

If non-adjusting events that occurred after the reporting period are significant, non-disclosure of information about
them may affect the economic decisions of users which are made on the basis of these financial statements.
Accordingly, the Group discloses the nature of such events and estimates of their financial effect or states the

impossibility of such estimate for each material category of non-adjusting events that occurred after the reporting
period.

4. Significant accounting judgements and estimates

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, Management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of income,
expenses, assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized
prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment are disclosed below:

4.1 Basis of consolidation (transactions under common control)

Control is the ability to govern an entity’s financial and operating policies with the aim of receiving benefits from
its activities. Where control over subsidiaries and the parent company belongs to the ultimate beneficial owner,
these transactions are considered to be combinations of business under common control, which are outside the
scope of IFRS3: “Business combinations”.

4.2 Fair value less costs to sell of biological assets

Biological assets are recorded at fair values less costs to sell. The Group estimates the fair values of biological
assets based on the following key assumptions:

- Average production of eggs over lifecycle of poultry

- Average productive life of livestock poultry

- Estimated future sales price

- Projected production costs and costs to sell

- Discount rate

- Mortality rate
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4, Significant accounting judgements and estimates (cont.)
4.3 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group estimates the remaining useful life of property, plant and equipment at least once a year at the end of
the fiscal year. Should the expectations differ from previous estimates, changes are accounted for as changes in
accounting estimates in accordance with IAS 8 "Accounting Policy, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors”. These estimates may have a significant effect on the carrying value of property, plant and equipment and
depreciation recognised in profit or loss.

4.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to setl and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based
on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will
enhance the asset’s performance of the cash generating unit being tested. The recoverable amount is the most
sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash inflows
and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

4.5 VAT recoverable

Management classified VAT recoverable balance as current based on expectations that will be realised within
twelve months from the reporting period. In addition management assessed whether the allowance for
irrecoverable VAT needs to be created.

In making this assessment, management considered past history of receiving VAT refunds from the state budget.
For VAT recoverable expected to be set off against VAT liabilities in future periods, management based its
estimates on detailed projections of expected excess of VAT input over VAT output in the normal course of
business.

4.6 Impairment of receivables
The Group reviews its trade and other receivables for evidence of their recoverability.

The Group provides for doubtful debts to cover potential losses when a customer may be unable to make necessary
payments. In assessing the adequacy of provision for doubtful debts, Management considers the current economic
conditions in general, the age of accounts receivable, the Group’s experience in writing off of receivables,
solvency of customers and changes in conditions of settlements. Economic changes, industry situation or financial
position of separate customers may result in adjustments related to the amount of provision for doubtful debts
reflected in the consolidated financial statements as impairments of receivables.

Group approach is used in calculating the impairment of receivables:

Group approach - receivables are grouped, and turnover is analysed for the group as a whole, rather than on each
individual debt separately. Based on the analysis of accounts receivable according to the previous reporting period
data for the share of uncollectible receivables, interest is calculated for calculation of reserve for doubtful debt of
current reporting period. Subsequently, to calculate the provision of doubtful debt of current reporting period,
interest is applied to outstanding balance for the current period, less the amount of accounts receivable, provision
for which is calculated on an individual basis.
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4, Significant accounting judgements and estimates (cont.)

4.6 Impairment of receivables (cont.)

The amount of impairment in respect of doubtful debt is reported in the statement of comprehensive income in
other operating expenses.

Bad debts which are recovered are written-off from the consolidated statement of financial position along with a

corresponding adjustment to the provision for doubtful debts, and the recovered amount is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group does not accrue provisions for doubtful debts on balances with intragroup parties regardless of the
origin date of current debt, as these would be eliminated on consolidation.

4.7 Legal proceedings

The Group’s management applies significant assumptions in the measurement and recognition of provisions for
and risks of exposure to contingent liabilities, related to existing legal proceedings and other unsettled claims, and
also other contingent liabilities. Management’s judgment is required in estimating the probability of a successful
claim against the Group or the crystallising of a material obligation, and in determining the probable amount of
the final settlement or obligation. Due to uncertainty inherent to the process of estimation, actual expenses may
differ from the initial estimates. Such preliminary estimates may alter as new information is received, from internal
specialists within the Group, if any, or from third parties, such as lawyers. Revision of such estimates may have
a significant effect on the future results of operating activity.

4.8 Impairment of obsolete and surplus inventory

At each reporting period, the Group assesses the necessity to impair obsolete and surplus inventory. If such
necessity exists, the reserve is calculated and necessary adjustments are made.

Estimation of the amount of impairment against obsolete and surplus inventory is based on the type of inventory,
inventory turnover, the date of balance origination and estimated shelf life of particular type of inventory.

4.9 Deferred tax assets

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and timing of
future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business relationships and the long-term nature and
complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions
made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense
already recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of
audits by the tax authorities of the respective regions in which it operates.

The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing
interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of
interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective Group
companies’ domicile.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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4. Significant accounting judgements and estimates (cont.)
4.9 Deferred tax assets (cont.)

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting period and reduced to the extent where no longer exists any
probability for sufficient taxable profit to be received, which enables realising the whole number of or a part of
deferred tax assets. Estimate of probability includes judgments, which are based on expected characteristics of
activity. To estimate the probability of utilising deferred tax assets in future, various factors are used, including
previous years’ results, operating plans, expiry of tax losses recovery, strategies of tax planning. Should actual
results differ from the estimates, and should such estimates need to be reviewed in future periods, this can
negatively influence the financial position, financial resuits and cash flows. Should the estimated utilisation of
deferred tax assets be reduced, such reduction is to be recognised in profit or loss.

4,10 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are determined by the occwrrence or mon-occurrence of one or more future events.
Measurement of contingent liabilities is based on Management’s judgments and estimates of the outcomes of such
future events. In particular, the tax laws in Ukraine are complex and significant management judgement is
required to interpret those laws in connection with the tax affairs of the Group, which is open to challenge by the
tax authorities. Additionally, the impact on the Group of the economic and political situation in Ukraine (note 39).

4.11 Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a
valuation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including
Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the CFO.

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the valuation team
assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the
requirements of IFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Board of Directors.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.

« Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

« Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Group recognises
transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
occurred.

Futher information about the assumption made in measuring fair values is included in relevant notes.
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4. Significant accounting judgements and estimates (cont.)
4.12 Ukrainian business environment

The economic situation in Ukraine has significantly deteriorated since 2014 after the annexation of Crimean
peninsula by the Russian Federation (further — the RF), the event that was recognized by neither Ukraine nor the
World community. This development has lead to substantial deterioration of relations between Ukraine and the
RF. The Crimea annexation has spread the pressure throughout the Eastern regions of Ukraine (mostly Donetsk
Oblast’ and Lugansk Oblast’). In May 2014, the social unrest fueled by the RF, has grown into a military conflict
between self-proclaimed Donetsk and Lugansk People’s Republics and Ukrainian troops. The military conflict
has not been resolved yet. The Donetsk Oblast’ and Lugansk Oblast’ are partly controlled by self-proclaimed

Donetsk and Lugansk People’s Republics. Ukrainian authorities are incapable of enforcing the law on these
territories.

These events have led to the disappearance of economic links between Ukraine and the RF, the key export
destination for many Ukrainian industries. Ukraine has lost control over large mining companies concentrated in
the East of the country, which significantly decreased the inflow of foreign currency. Eventually, the national
GDP has dropped, public finances have eroded, the national currency has suffered severe devaluation and the
credit rating of the sovereign debt has continued to deteriorate. The newly elected Government of Ukraine had no
financial power to avoid the economic downfall in years 2014-2015, Minimal international reserves and exhausted
government accounts have forced the government to introduce administrative anti-crisis tools. The National Bank
of Ukraine has introduced currency restrictions: conversion limits, the requirement to convert 75% of foreign
currency revenue into national currency, abroad dividend payment ban, ban on early repayment of foreign loans,
cash withdrawal limitations. Such restrictions have limited the abilities of Ukrainian companies and banks to lend
and borrow money on domestic and international markets.

It is hard to foresee the eventual outcome of the conflict with the RF and the Ukrainian econormnic crisis. In case
of resumption of hostilities in the East of Ukraine, the government will be forced to increase military spending
and face another period of economic turbulence. To date, we can conclude the Ukrainian government has managed
to stabilize the economy. In years 2016-2017 the GDP growth was 2,3% and 2% respectfully (the best growth
indicator since 2012). The administrative restrictions are being gradually lifted. The law on currency regulation
enters into force in 2018; it is designed to liberalize the currency market and stimulate foreign economic activities.
Despite the floating exchange rate introduced on the IMF’s demand, national currency is rather stable. There are
signs of recovery from deep economic crisis of years 2014-2015.

The management of the Group takes all the necessary steps to support the financial stability of the Group in current
circumstances. Despite the first signs of economic recovery, we are still suffering from significant devaluation of
national currency. The value of UAH has decreased by 3,5 times since the beginning of the military conflict in
early 2014. This was followed by the drop in the demand on domestic market ignited by the deterioration of
purchasing power of Ukrainians.

That is why we look to the future with cautious optimism. We understand that it will take several years to recover
from crisis. This consolidated financial report reflects current Management’s view on the influence of the
Ukrainian business environment on the financial standing of the Group. The future developments in Ukrainian
economy can differ from the Management’s expectations. This financial report was not adjusted for any events
after the reporting period.
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5. Property, plant and equipment (cont.)

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 the property, plant and equipment that was used as security for
long-term and short-term loans was as follows:

Carrying value of security as at

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Buildings and structures 32 566 35377
Machinery and equipment 945 1160
Equipment for biological assets 22 079 23784
Land 986 1025

56 576 61 346

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 the net book value of property, plant and equipment which were
acquired under finance leases amounted to nil and USD 28 thousand respectively.

6. Biological assets

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Non-current biological assets

Replacement poultry 3732 14 273
3732 14273

Current biological assets
Commercial poultry 16 160 7755
16 160 7755
Total 19 892 22028

a) Commercial poultry and replacement poultry were as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
LD Fair value LD Fair value
thousand head thousand head
Loman 9430 18 605 13 356 21 879
Novogen 99 1287 - -
Decalb - - 125 94
Tetra - 77 55

9529 19 892 13 558 22 028
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6. Biological assets (cont.)

b) Reconciliation of commercial and replacement poultry fair value was as follows:

Balance at 1 January 2016 27139
Acquisitions 4 090
Increase in value as a result of increase in

weight/number 45398
Net change in fair value (2 232)
Decrease in value resulting from assets disposal (2997)
Effect from translation into presentation currency (3 060)
Decrease in value resulting from hens slaughtering (46 217)
Other changes (93)
Balance at 31 December 2016 22028
Balance at 1 January 2017 22 028
Acquisitions 40 926
Increase in value as a result of increase in

weight/number 111 170
Net change in fair value (3 108)
Decrease in value resulting from assets disposal {36 754)
Effect from translation into presentation currency (607)
Decrease in value resulting from hens slaughtering (113 535)
Other changes (228)
Balance at 31 December 2017 19 892

Due to the absence of an active market for laying hen in Ukraine to determine the fair value of biological assets,
the Group uses the discounted net present vaiue of future net cash flows expected from the biological assets. As
a discount rate, the rate of 24,66% prevailing as at 31 December 2017 was applied (for the year ended 31
December 2016: 26,13%).

The line item “Other changes” includes hen mortality, discarding and utilisation of poultry.

Regulatory and environmental risk

The Group is subject to laws and regulations in Ukraine. The Group has established environmental policies and
procedures aimed at compliance with local environment and other laws.

7. Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity investments as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

VAT government bonds 3712 7 664
Discount VAT government bonds {872) (1 964)
2 840 5700

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Coupon receivable 260 409

During the year 2014 the Group’s management decided to voluntarily obtain VAT government bonds as a
settlement of VAT refundable. These bonds bear a semi-annual interest of 9,5% and mature in 2019.
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8. Taxes recoverable and prepaid

Taxes recoverable and prepaid as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:

Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
VAT settlements a) 17 807 8 403
QOther taxes prepaid 42 76
17 849 8479

a) VAT settlements related to VAT recoverable arising from operating activities and capital expenditure, is subject
to:

e cash refund through release of budgetary funds by the Government;
o settlement of future tax liabilities of the entity under this tax within non-agricultural transactions.

The VAT settlements are receivable within one year based on the prior years’ pattern, history of cash refunds and
expectations that funds will be realised within twelve months from the reporting period.

9, Inventories
Inventories as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Raw and basic materials 13 952 20103
Work-in-progress 361 281
Agricultural produce 2292 1 685
Finished goods 30126 22475
Package and packing materials 5366 5546
Goods for resale 1357 10070
Other inventories 2 847 1984

56 301 62 144

Raw and basic materials mainly consist of grains and mixed fodder inventories.

The Group produced shell eggs in the quantity of 2 399 489 108 (2016: 2 495 757 032 items) which have fair
value amounted to USD 105 562 thousand (2016: USD 131 891 thousand).

10. Trade accounts receivable, net
Trade accounts reveivable as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Trade receivables-gross 92113 01115
Provision for doubtful debts (46 737) (50 487)
45 376 40 628

As at 31 December 2017 an amount of USD 10 842 thousand or 23,9% of the total carrying value of trade accounts
receivable is due from the single most significant debtor (as at 31 December 2016-see note 36).

The fair values of trade accounts receivable due within one year approximate to their carrying amounts as
presented above.

The exposure of the Group to credit risk and impairment losses in relation to trade accounts receivable is reported
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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11. Prepayments and other current assets, net

Prepayments and other current assets as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Prepayments 2689 9590
Provision for doubtful debts (1812) (4 139)
Other non-trade accounts receivable 4 349 5129
Current portion of VAT bonds 3713 3832

8 939 14 412

The overall decrease in prepayments and other current assets is associated with the change of the Group's policy
for procurement of grain due to the unstable situation in Ukraine.

The exposure of the Group to credit risk and impairment losses in relation to prepayments and other current assets
is reported in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

12, Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Cash in banks 18 241 12 570
Cash in hand 1 -
Cash and cash equivalents represented in

consolidated statement of cash flows LLonb 12570

The exposure of the Group to credit risk and impairment losses and to liquidity risk in relation to cash and cash
equivalents is reported in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

13. Share capital
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Number of Share capital, Number of Share capital,
shares USD ths shares USD ths

Aunthorised

Ordinary shares Euro 0,10 each 6 500 000 908 6 500 000 008
Issued and fully paid

Balance at 31 December 6 387 185 836 6387 185 836

On 22 April 2010 the Company increased its authorized share capital by 1 500 000 ordinary shares of EUR 0,10
per share.

In May and June 2010 the Company issued 1 387 185 ordinary shares with nominal value EUR 0,10 per share.

In respect of this share issue, the Company generated net share premium amounting to USD 201 164 thousand
(net of share issue costs of USD 6 914 thousand) {10 GDR are equal to 1 ordinary share) as a result of initial

placement of 14 375 000 GDR on the main market of London Stock Exchange, out of which the 13 871 859 GDR
were issued.
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14. Long-term loans

Long-term loans as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Long-term bank loans in national currency 46 479 47976
Long-term bank loans in foreign currency 87628 76 756
Total loans 134 107 124 732
Commodity credit 316 327
134 423 125 059

Current portion of non-current liabilities for bank loans
in national currency (4 045) (806)

Current portion of non-current liabilities for bank loans
in foreign currency (87 628) (30 329)
42 750 93 924

a) As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 the long-term bank loans by maturities were as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Less than one year 91673 31134
From 1 to 2 years 6528 15998
From 2 to 3 years 6528 17 638
From 3 to 4 years 6528 14 507
From 4 1o 5 years 22 848 14 302
Over 5 years - 31753

134 106 124 732

b) As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 the long-term bank loans by currencies were as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Long-term bank loans in UAH 46478 47 976
Long-term bank loans in EUR 87 628 76 756
134 106 124 732

c) As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 the interest rates for long-term bank loans were as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Long-term bank Ioans denominated in UAH 12,5%-18% 12,5%-18%
1,5%+EURIBOR- 1,5%+EURIBOR-
Long-term bank loans in EUR 2,7%+EURIBOR 2,7%+EURIBOR

As at the end of the reporting period the Group had overdue payments for some of the long-term borrowings and
was not in compliance with certain covenants. As a result, the relevant portion was classified as current until
finalisation of the Group’s Management negotiations with the banks with the expectation to agree on the
restructuring of debt with favourable conditions for both parties.

d) Commodity credit in the amount of USD 316 thousand (2016: USD 327 thousand) is represented by a liability
of the Group's companies, QJSC “Volnovahskyi Kombinat Khilboprodiktiv”’ and OJSC *“Ptakhohospodarstvo
Chervonyi Prapor” for an interest-free budget loan received in the years 1995-1998 for the acquisition of
agricultural products under a Government contract. In case of default after the maturity of the loan the Group’s
companies are subject to fine and, according to Ukrainian laws, is set equal to compulsory payments in the State
budget of Ukraine, applying sanctions stipulated by the laws with regard to late payment of taxes and making of
non-tax payments. The commodity credit does not have a maturity date.
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14. Long-term loans (cont.)

The exposure of the Group to interest rate risk and liquidity risk in relation to loans and borrowings is reported in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

15. Bond liabilities

On 29 October 2010, the Company issued 2 000 five year non-convertible bonds with par value equal to USD
100 000 each. The Notes have been admitted to the official list of the UK listing Authority and to trading on
London Stock Exchange plc's regulated market with effect from 1 November 2010. The USD 200 000 000 10%
Notes, bear interest from 29 October 2010 at a rate of 10% per annum payable semi annually in arrears on 29
April and 29 Qctober in each year, commencing on 29 April 2011. The maturity date is 29 October 2015 and the
placement price was 98,093% of the principal amount of the Notes.

Considering different options regarding the maturity of the bonds, the Company has successfully completed a
restructuring of its USD 200m 10% Notes due in 29 October 2015 via a Scheme of Arrangement ( the *Scheme”).
The Scheme was approved by a majority in number representing more than 75% in value of creditors present and
voting either in person or by proxy at the Scheme Meeting held on 22 October 2015. Following this, by an order
dated 26 October 2015, the High Court of Justice of England and Wales sanctioned the Scheme.

As a result of the Scheme the following key amendments were made to the terms and conditions of the Notes:
- Maturity: Amended to 29 October 2018, 100% of principal to be redeemed at this date.
- Coupon: The 5% coupon will be payable on 29 October 2015 (representing the semi-annual payment of

the existing 10% coupon), with 2% to be paid in cash as a regular coupon payment and 3% to be paid as
payment in kind ("PIK"). The 10% coupon will be payable semi-annually in arrears on 29 April and 29
October of each year, commencing 29 April 2016, but subject to the following PIK and cash payment

provisions:

Interest payment date PIK Interest % | Cash Interest %
29.04.16 75 25

29.10.16 75 25

29.04.17 50 50

29.10.17 50 50

29.04.18 25 75

29.10.18 0 100

The Company appointed UBS Limited as sole solicitation agent, Latham & Watkins as legal counsel, and DFKing
as information and tabulation agent amongst other consultants to assist it in the implementation of the Scheme.

Surety providers of the bonds following the Scheme were as follows: (1) PJSC Agroholding Avangard (PJSC
Ptakhohospodarstvo Chervonyi Prapor), (2) LLC Imperovo Foods, (3) PSPC Interbusiness, (4) LLC Slovyany.

The Company continues to be in discussions with various creditor groups.
In March 2017 the Management of the Company has decided to commence the restructuring process of its Bonds

and is currently engaged in negotiations with bondholders. The primary reasons which triggered this process are
outlined below:
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15. Bond liabilities (cont.)

« weak micro-economic and macro-economic conditions in Ukraine, the Group’s primary jurisdiction of operation
and principal market, which adversely impacted demand and prices for the Group’s products;

= the annexation of Crimea and the ongoing military conflict in the Donetsk and Lugansk regions of Ukraine;

= challenging conditions for exports as a result of continuing military/political disruption in certain of the Group’s
key export markets in the Middle East; and

« its inability to refinance existing indebtedness as a result of the continued weakness of the Ukrainian banking
system and the unavailability of international capital markets to Ukrainian borrowers.

Currently the Company defaulted in paying the interest due under the Note.
The rectructuring process will help the Company continue to maintain its assets and operations. Going forward
the Company is planning to concentrate on operations while prudently managing liquidity and servicing it’s

existing debt portfolio.

The exposure of the Group to interest rate risk and liquidity risk in relation to bond liabilities is reported in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

16. Securities

Long-term loans (Note 14) as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were secured on assets as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Buildings and structures 32 566 35377
Machinery and equipment 945 I 160
Equipment for biological assets 22079 23784
Land 986 1025
Total 56 576 61 346

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 surety providers of the liabilities of UkrLandFarming Plc were
as follows: LLC Imperovo Foods, PSPC Interbusiness, PYSC Agroholding Avangard (PJSC Ptakhohospodarstvo
Chervonyi Prapor), LLC Slovyany.

17. Current portion of non-current financial liabilities

The current portion of non-current financial liabilities as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 was as
follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Trade and other payables

Deferred income (current portion) 87 89

Financial liabilities

Current portion of non-current liabilities for bank loans

in foreign currency 87 628 30329

Current portion of non-current liabilities for bank loans

in national currency 4 045 806
91 760 31224

The exposure of the Group to liquidity risk in relation to non-current financial liability is reported in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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18. Deferred tax assets and liabilities, income tax expense
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The principal components of deferred tax assets and liabilities before netting off on a company basis as at

31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:

Influence of temporary differences on deferred tax
assets

Property, plant and equipment, non-current assets
Provisions

Total deferred tax assets

Influence of temporary differences on deferred tax
liabilities

Deferred expenses

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets

Total deferred tax assets
Total deferred tax liabilitics
Net deferred tax assets

Principal components of income tax expense

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
6103 3755
2 255 1558
8 358 5313
) (1)
(4) (1)
8354 5312
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
8 662 5663
(308) (351)
8 354 5312

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 the rate of income tax in Ukraine was equal to 18%.

Current income tax
Deferred tax asset
Income tax credit for the year

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities

Balance as at 1 January

Deferred tax credit

Effect of translation into presentation currency
Balance as at 31 December

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
(4 (124)
3385 3 445
3311 3321
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
5312 2351
3385 3445
(343) (484)
8 354 5312
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18. Deferred tax assets and liabilities, income tax expense (cont.)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting (loss)/profit multiplied by the rate of income tax

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Accounting loss before tax (10 780) (59 957)

Less accounting profit of the companies being fixed "

agricultural tax payers Seas o
(8 508) {44 462)

Accounting loss of the companies being income tax

pavers at the rate 12,5% (3930) QLT
Accounting loss of the companies being income tax
payers at the rate 18% (4 578) (3092)
(8 508) (44 462)
Income tax, taxable at the rate of 12,5% (491) (517)
Income tax, taxable at the rate of 18% (824) (557)
Tax effect of allowances and income not subject to tax 4 626 9 049
Tax as per consolidated statement of profit or loss
- . 3m 3321
and other comprehensive income - credit
As at 1 January 2016 72
Income tax accrued for the year (124)
Income tax paid for the year 43
Effect of translation into presentation currency 50
As at 31 December 2016/ 1 January 2017 41
Income tax accrued for the year {(74)
Income tax paid for the year 46
Effect of translation into presentation currency 22
As at 31 December 2017 35
19, Trade payables
Trade payables as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:
Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Trade payables 2262 2955
Short-term notes issued a) 36 107
2298 3062

a) As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 the short-term notes issued were represented by promissory,
non interest-bearing, notes.

The exposure of the Group to liquidity risk in relation to trade payables is reported in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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20, Other accounts payable

Other accounts payable as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:

Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Accrued expenses for future employee benefits 441 280
Other accrued expenses 214 208
Wages and salaries and related taxes liabilities 809 512
Other taxes and compulsory payments liabilities a) 154 430
Accounts payable for property, plant and equipment 124 214
Advances received from customers b) 198 389
Interest payable on loans 10 955 6042
Accrued coupon on bonds 14 249 1919
Other payables c) 1844 2 444

28 989 12 438

a) Other taxes and compulsory payments liabilities mainly comprises of liabilities for VAT and community
charges.

b) Advances received from customers consist of prepayments for the sale of agriculture products and finished
goods from buyers.

c) Other payables consist of payables for electricity, gas, water, security services, lease and other.

The exposure of the Group to liquidity risk in relation to other accounts payable is reported in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

21. Loss from operating activities
Loss from operating activities is stated after (charging)/crediting the following items:

for the year ended

Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5 (15411) (15 659)
{Loss)/profit on disposal of non current assets 27 30) 150
Bad Debt recovered 27 4488 -
Provisions for doubtful debts and amounts written off 27 - (18 582)
Payroll and related expenses 31 (10 778) (7 785)
Independent auditors' remuneration for statutory audit of

annual accounts {362) (603)

22. Revenue

Sales revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 was as follows:

for the year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Revenue from finished goods 117 699 140 761
Revenue from goods sold 9623 50 145
Revenue from services rendered 565 308
127 887 191 304

For the year ended 31 December 2017 USD 28 064 thousand (2016: USD 45 119 thousand) or 21,9%

(2016: 23,6%) from the Group’s revenue refers to the sales transactions carried out with one of the Group’s clients
(note 36).
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23. Cost of sales
Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31December 2016 was as follows:

for the year ended

Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Cost of finished goods sold 24 (124 961) (127 930)
Cost of goods sold (9 561) (47 860)
Cost of services rendered (394) (85)
{134 916) (175 875)

24, Cost of sales by elements

The cost of finished goods sold (Note 23) for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 was as
follows:

for the year ended

Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Raw materials (97 630) {101 568)
Payroll of production personnel and related taxes 31 (5945) (3 705)
Depreciation (15 198) {15 393)
Services provided by third parties {6 086) (7173)
Other expenses (102) (23]

23 {124 961) (127 930)

Services provided by third parties consists of expenses for electricity, storage services, gas, water, current repairs
of production premises, sanitary cleaning services, veterinary services and other.

25. General administrative expenses
General administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:

for the year ended

Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Salaries and wages of administrative personnel 31 (4 436) (3 641)
Services provided by third parties (3278) (2 936)
Depreciation (98) (98)
Repairs and maintenance costs {104) (264)
Tax expenses, except for income tax {520) (316)
Material usage (319} (236)
Other expenses {200} (395)

(8 955) (7 886)
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26, Distribution expenses

Distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:

Salaries and wages of distribution personnel
Transport expenses

Depreciation

Services provided by third parties

Packing materials

Repairs and maintenance costs

Other expenses

27. Other operating income/(expenses)

for the year ended

Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
3 (397) (439)
(4 290} {4 332)
{115} (165)
(2 720) (3 492)
(69) (47)
4) %)
(151) (78)
{7746) (8 558)

Other operating income/{expenses) for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:

Gain on disposal of current assets

(Loss)/income on disposal of non current assets
Impairment of current assets

Gain realised from writing-off of accounts payable
Foreign currency sale (loss)/income

Bad Debt recovered

Provision for doubtful debts and amounts written off
Fines, penalties recognized

Other (expense)/income

28. Finance costs

for the year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

31 14
(30) 150
(138) (709)
400 262
(34) (51}
4488 -
5 (18 582)
(327) (86)
(586) 1895
3 804 (17 107)

Finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 was as follows:

Interest payable on loans

Total finance expenses on loans
Finance expenses on finance lease
Finance expenses on bonds

Other finance expenses

29, Finance income

for the year ended

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
(8 682) (7 945)
(8 682) (7 945)
- (12)
(22 645) (21 241)
(2372) (2 082)
(33 699) (31 280)

Finance income for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 includes the interest income from
VAT government bonds and placement of deposits, amounted to USD 1 982 thousand and USD 2 825 thousand

respectively.
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30. Government grants received
30.1 Income from government grants and incentives
Income from govemment grants and incentives received for the year ended 31 December 2017 and

31 December 2016 was as follows:
for the year ended

Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Amortization of deferred income on government grants  a) 91 98
Income from VAT government grants received b) 19 151 -
19242 98

a) Partial compensation of complex agricultural equipment cost

Enterprises of the Group received partial compensation of complex agricultural equipment cost during the years
2004-2010 according to Ukrainian laws. The total amount of compensations received for the above mentioned
period is UAH 60 608 thousand. Those grants were recognised as deferred income and reflected within the
"Deferred income" item in the consolidated statement of financial position. The deferred income is amortised over

the estimate useful life of the relevant asset (generally 25 years) and the amortisation is reflected in the above
table.

b) Income from VAT government grants received

Since 1 January 2017, a new subsidy for distributing the government grants has been introduced for Ukrainian
agricultural producers instead of the special VAT taxation treatment which was in force until 2016. The main
objective is that the Goverment returns part of the VAT paid by agricultural producers to the Govenment. The
distribution of the government grants will be implemented by State Treasury Service under a separate program of
the Ministry of Agrarian Policy and Food.

30.2 Income from special VAT treatment

According to the Tax Code of Ukraine agricultural enterprises (those with a relative value of agricultural products
in total sales not less than 75% for the previous 12 months) have a tax benefit for VAT on agriculture transactions.
Positive VAT balance (positive difference between tax liability and tax credit) from agricuitural transactions shall
be recognized as government grants on special VAT treatment and transferred to special current account in a
financial institution and negative balance (negative difference between tax liability and tax credit) is not subject
to budgetary refund and credited to the tax credit for the next reporting (tax) period. This benefit ceased on 31
December 2016 upon the introduction of the procedure of distributing the government grants as outlined in note
30.1 (b) above.
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31. Payroll and related taxes

for the year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Salary {6 759) (4 882)
Contributions to state funds {4019) {2 903)
(10 778) (7 785)
for the year ended
Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Payroll of production personnel and related taxes 24 {5945) (3 705)
Salaries and wages of administrative personnel 25 {4 436) (3 641)
Salaries and wages of distribution personnel 26 (397) (439)
(10 778) {7 785)

for the year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Average number of employees, persons 2012 2036

32. Related party balances and transactions

The Company is controlled by Oleg Bakhmatyuk, who directly or indirectly owns 77,5% of the Company’s share
capital. The remaining 22,5% of the shares are widely owned.

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, parties are considered to be related if one party has
the ability to control the other party, is under commeon control, or can exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial or operational decisions. In considering each possible related party relationship,
attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form.

According to these criteria the related parties of the Group are divided into the following categories:
A. Key management personnel;

B. Companies having the same top management;
C. Companies in which the Group's owners have an equity interest;
D. Companies in which activities are significantly influenced by the Group's owners.

Salary costs of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were
as follows:

for the year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Salary 1131 919
Contributions to state funds 138 118

1269 1037
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32. Related party balances and transactions (cont.)

Outstanding amounts of the Group for transactions with related parties as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016 were as follows: .

Qutstanding balances with related parties as
at

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Prepayments and other current assets, net
D. Companies in which activities are significantly

influenced by the Group's owners e i
3298 5499
Trade accounts receivable
D. Companies in which activities are significantly 11 625 154
influenced by the Group's owners
11 625 154
Dividends payable
D. Companies in which activities are significantl
inﬂuencl;d by the Group's owners ¢ ¢ coter —
22 892 22892
Long-term finance lease
D. Companies in which activities are significantly ) 3
influenced by the Group's owners
- 3
Other current liabilities
D. Companies in which activities are significantly 2 2
influenced by the Group's owners
2 2

On 2™ July 2013 UkrLandFarming Plc acquired a direct shareholding percentage of 7,11% in the share capital of
LLC Imperovo Foods partially through contribution of technological equipment for elevators.

From 2™ July 2013 therefafter the share capital of LLC Imperovo Foods was increased through contributions from
other Group companies, therefore the direct shareholding percentage of UkrLandFarming Plc was decreased to
3,17% at 31 December 2014,

In 20135 the share capital of LLC Imperovo Foods was increased, therefore the direct shareholding percentage of
UkrLandFarming Plc at 31 December 2015 was increased to 3,56%.

As at 31 December 2017 Prepayments and other current assets, (net) include unpaid contribution to the share
capital of LLC Imperovo Foods in the amount of USD 2 944 thousand (31 December 2016: USD 3 069
thousand).
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32. Related party balances and transactions (cont.)

The Group's transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were
as follows:

Transactions with related parties for the
year ended

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Revenue
D. Companies in which activities are significantly
influenced by the Group's owners 19 239 52 820
19 239 52 820
General administrative expenses
D. Companies in which activities are significantly
influenced by the Group's owners (13) {12)
(13) (12)
Distribution expenses
D. Companies in which activities are significantly
influenced by the Group's owners {4 602) {4 870)
(4 602) (4 870)
Other operating income/(expenses), net
D. Companies in which activities are significantly
influenced by the Group's owners 107 938
107 938

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 purchases of goods, transportation, slaughtering
and rent services were provided to the Group by related parties in the amount of USD 2 293 thousand and USD
60 334 thousand respectively. All those goods and services were bought and provided on market terms.

33. Operating segments

A reportable segment is a separable component of a business entity that produces goods or provides services to
individuals (or groups of related products or services) in a particular economic environment that is subject to risks
and generate revenues other than risks and income of those components that are peculiar to other reportable
segments.

For the purpose of management, the Group is divided into the following reportable segments on the basis of

produced goods and rendered services, and consists of the following 5 reportable segments:

- shell eggs - breeding of industrial laying hens, production and sale of shell eggs;

- poultry - incubation (production and sale of baby chicks), breeding of young birds for sale, as well as sale of
birds for slaughter;

- animal feed - production and sale of feeds;

- egg products - processing and sale of egg products;

- other activities - including sale of goods and services, sale of poultry meat and by-products, sale of plant
production, sale of poultry manure etc.

Management monitors the operating results of each of the units separately for the purposes of making decisions
about resources allocation and evaluation of operating resuits. The results of segments’ activities are measured on
the basis of operating profit or loss, its measurement is carried out accordingly to measurement of operating profit
or loss in the consolidated financial statements.
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33. Operating segments (cont.)

Reportable segment information for the year ended 31 December 2017 was as follows:

60

. Adjustments
Animal Egg Other
S feed products  activities . %nd : Total
elimination
Sales revenue 176 191 63 439 118 833 14918 13 044 - 386 445
Intra-group elimination (94 066) (46467)  (115330) (876) (1 819) - (258 558)
pevenue from external 82125 16972 3523 14042 11225 - 127887
uyers
Income from revaluation of
biological assets at fair value 2024 (5132) ) ) ) . L))
Other operating expenses (2972) 185 17 6 847 273) - 3 804
Income ﬁ'OFn gov.emment 19 181 60 ) ) ) ) 19 242
grants and incentives
OPERATING
PROFIT/(LOSS) 6 783 (6 498) {2067) 2426 {4 436) - (3 792)
Finance income 174 - - 1 805 3 - 1982
Finance costs, (148) - - (6229) (27321) - (33 699)
including:
Interest payable on loans {148) - - (6 161) (2 373) - (8 682)
Income tax (expense)/credit (2) - (12) 3318 7 - 3311
NET (LOSS)/PROFIT
FOR THE YEAR 6970 (6 642) 2 079) 914 (6 632) - (7 469)
TOTAL ASSETS 2163470 51914 198 866 733 538 886 874 (3 521 831) 512 781
Capitalised expenses 949 14 - 231 k1) 1495
Depreciation 5280 2374 617 444 2 696 - 15411
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1 651 666 3100 230 8%4 534323 390751 (2382474) 428 260
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33. Operating segments (cont.)

Reportable segment information for the year ended 31 December 2016 was as follows:

61

. Adjustments
Shell eggs  Poultry GLIL T Egg O.th.e.r and Total
feed products activities S—
elimination
Sales revenue 191 954 26 145 83 361 50291 52 063 - 403 814
Intra-group elimination (112172) (17443) (81614) - (1281) - {212510)
pevenue from extemnal 79782 8702 1747 50291 50783 - 191304
uyers
Income from revaluation of
biclogical assets at fair value (3 367) 1335 (2232)
Other operating expenses {13 905) (265) 1503 (4 340) (100) - (17 107)
Income ﬁ-ogn government 96 2 N ) ) A 98
grants and incentives
OPERATING
(LOSS)/PROFIT (12317 {403) 372 (1 630) (902) - (14 880)
Finance income 252 - - 2536 37 - 2825
Finance costs, (148) - - {6 148) (24 984) - (31 280)
including:
Interest payable on loans (148) - - (6123) (1674) - (7 945)
Income tax (expense)/credit - - (136) 3517 {60) - 3321
NET (LOSS)/PROFIT
FOR THE YEAR (12 216) 47 236 (3 419) (40 765) - (56 636)
TOTAL ASSETS 2099459 135865 269 895 738 659 848109 (3 562 496) 529 47
Capitalised expenses 11 631 3 86 168 3im - 15 659
Depreciation 9975 2335 568 462 2317 - 15657
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1575316 78 133 301495 544 228 350 591 {2 459 082) 390 681

The Group’s revenue from external customers and information about its non-current assets by geographical

location are presented as follows:

Revenue from
external customers
for the year ended

Non-current assets

As at

31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Ukraine 20037 79 439 349 879 383462
Middle East and North Africa 23378 33835 - -
Far East 3555 37 144 - -
Central and West Africa 2205 165 - -
Europe 8153 34 716 - -
South Asia 61 6 005 - -
Total 127 887 191 304 349 879 383 462




62
AVANGARDCO INVESTMENTS PUBLIC LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(in USD thousand, unless otherwise stated)

34. Loss per share

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 was based
on loss attributable to the owners of the Company, and a weighted average number of ordinary shares as follows:

for the year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Loss attributable o the owners of the Company:
(in USD thousands)

Loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company (6 734) (56 978)

Weighted average number of shares:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 June 6 387 185 6387 185

Loss per share (USD) (1) (9)

Loss per share is the loss for the year after taxation divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue for
each year.

There are no options or instruments convertible into new shares and so basic and diluted earnings per share are
the same.

35. Contingent and contractual liabilities
Ukrainian business and economic environment

The economic situation in Ukraine has significantly deteriorated since 2014 after the annexation of Crimean
peninsula by the Russian Federation (further — the RF), the event that was recognized by neither Ukraine nor the
World community. This development has lead to substantial deterioration of relations between Ukraine and the
RF. The Crimea annexation has spread the pressure throughout the Eastern regions of Ukraine (mostly Donetsk
Oblast’ and Lugansk Oblast’). In May 2014, the social unrest fueled by the RF, has grown into a military conflict
between self-proclaimed Donetsk and Lugansk People’s Republics and Ukrainian troops. The military conflict
has not been resolved yet. The Donetsk Oblast’ and Lugansk Oblast’ are partly controlled by seif-proclaimed
Donetsk and Lugansk People’s Republics. Ukrainian authorities are incapable of enforcing the law on these
territories.

These events have led to the disappearance of economic links between Ukraine and the RF, the key export
destination for many Ukrainian industries. Ukraine has lost control over large mining companies concentrated in
the East of the country, which significantly decreased the inflow of foreign currency. Eventually, the national
GDP has dropped, public finances have eroded, the national currency has suffered severe devaluation and the
credit rating of the sovereign debt has continued to deteriorate. The newly elected Government of Ukraine had no
financial power to avoid the economic downfall in years 2014-2015. Minimal international reserves and exhausted
government accounts have forced the government to introduce administrative anti-crisis tools. The National Bank
of Ukraine has introduced currency restrictions: conversion limits, the requirement to convert 75% of foreign
currency revenue into national currency, abroad dividend payment ban, ban on early repayment of foreign loans,
cash withdrawal limitations. Such restrictions have limited the abilities of Ukrainian companies and banks to lend
and borrow money on domestic and international markets.
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35. Contingent and contractual liabilities (cont.)
Ukrainian business and economic environment (cont.)

It is hard to foresee the eventual outcome of the conflict with the RF and the Ukrainian economic crisis. In case
of resumption of hostilities in the East of Ukraine, the government will be forced to increase military spending
and face another period of economic turbulence. To date, we can conclude the Ukrainian government has managed
to stabilize the economy. In years 2016-2017 the GDP growth was 2,3% and 2% respectfully (the best growth
indicator since 2012). The administrative restrictions are being gradually lified. The law on currency regulation
enters into force in 2018; it is designed to liberalize the currency market and stimulate foreign economic activities.
Despite the floating exchange rate introduced on the IMF’s demand, national currency is rather stable. There are
signs of recovery from deep economic crisis of years 2014-2015.

The management of the Group takes all the necessary steps to support the financial stability of the Group in current
circumstances. Despite the first signs of economic recovery, we are still suffering from significant devaluation of
national currency. The value of UAH has decreased by 3,5 times since the beginning of the military conflict in
early 2014, This was followed by the drop in the demand on domestic market ignited by the deterioration of
purchasing power of Ukrainians.

That is why we look to the future with cautious optimism. We understand that it will take several years to recover
from crisis. This consolidated financial report reflects current Management’s view on the influence of the
Ukrainian business environment on the financial standing of the Group. The future developments in Ukrainian
economy can differ from the Management’s expectations. This financial report was not adjusted for any events
after the reporting period.

Taxation

As a result of unstable economic situation in Ukraine, tax authorities in Ukraine pay more and more attention to
the business cycles. In connection with it, tax laws in Ukraine are subject to frequent changes. Furthermore, there
are cases of their inconsistent application, interpretation and execution. Non-compliance with laws and norms
may lead to serious fines and penalties accruals.

The Company operates in the Cypriot tax jurisdiction and its subsidiaries in the Ukrainian tax jurisdiction. The
Company’s management must interpret and apply existing legislation to transactions with third parties and its
own activities. Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for direct and indirect taxes. There
are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

The Group’s uncertain tax positions are reassessed by Management at every reporting period. Liabilities are
recorded for income tax positions that are determined by Management as more likely than not to result in
additional taxes being levied if the positions were to be challenged by the tax authorities. The assessment is based
on the interpretation of tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting period and any
known Court or other rulings on such issues. Liabilities for penalties, interest and taxes other than on income are

recognised based on Management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligations at the
reporting period.

In December 2010, the revised Tax Code of Ukraine was officially published. In its entirety, the Tax Code of
Ukraine became effective on 1 January 2011, while some of its provisions took effect later. Apart from changes
in CIT rates from 1 April 2011 and planned abandonment of VAT refunds for agricultural industry from 1 January
2017, the Tax Code also changed various other taxation rules.
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35. Contingent and contractual liabilities (cont.)
Taxation (cont.)

The Group considers that it operates in compliance with tax laws of Ukraine, although, a lot of new laws about
taxes and transactions in foreign currency have been adopted recently, and their interpretation is rather ambiguous.

As from 1 January 2017, the special VAT regime for agricultural producers was completely abolished. Thus all
subjects of special VAT regime have switched to standard VAT terms.

While the Group's management believes the enactment of the Tax Code of Ukraine will not have a significant
negative impact on the Group's financial results in the foreseeable future, as of the date these financial statements

were authorized for issue management was in the process of assessing its effects of its adoption on the operations
of the Group.

Pension and other liabilities

Most of the Group's employees receive pension benefits from the Pension Fund, Ukrainian state organization, in
accordance with the regulations and laws of Ukraine. Group is obliged to deduct a certain percentage of salaries
to the Pension Fund to pay pensions.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 the Group had no liabilities for any supplementary pension
payments, health care, insurance or other benefits after retirement to their working or former employees.

Legal matters

In the course of its economic activities the Group is involved in legal proceedings with third parties. In most cases,

the Group is the initiator of such proceedings with the purpose of preventing from losses in the economic sphere
or minimize them.

The Group’s management considers that as at the reporting period, active legal proceedings on such matters will
not have any significant influence on its financial position.

36. Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from the use of financial instruments:

a) credit risk;

b) liquidity risk;

¢) market risk;

d) livestock disease risk.

Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's
risk management framework.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.
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36. Financial risk management (cont.)
Risk management framework {cont.)

The Group is not a finance company, thus it uses financial instruments as may be necessary in order to obtain
finance for its activities, not for the purpose of receiving income. In the process of its activities the Group uses
the following financial instruments: cash and cash equivalents, loans to and from related parties, accounts
receivable, bonds, bank loans, finance leases and accounts payable.

The Group is exposed to the following risks resulting from use of financial instruments: credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk of fair value). This expianation contains
information relating to the Group’s exposure to each of the risk types mentioned above, Group’s objectives, its
policy and procedures of these risks measurement and management.

Additional disclosures of quantitative information are presented in many other sections of these consolidated
financial statements, including:

- information on finance income and costs is disclosed in Notes 28, 29 (all finance income and expenses are

recognised as a part of profit or loss for the year, other than interest capitalised which is allocated to the cost
of the relevant asset);

- information on cash is disclosed in Note 12;

- information on trade and other accounts receivable is disclosed in Notes 10, 11;

- information on trade and other accounts payable is disclosed in Notes 19, 20;

- information on significant terms of borrowings and loans granting is disclosed in Note 14;
- information on significant conditions of issued bonds is disclosed in Note 15;

- information on significant conditions of received bonds is disclosed in Note 7;

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group in case of non-fulfillment of financial obligations by a client
or counterparty under the respective agreement. In the reporting period the Group’s financial assets which are
exposed to credit risk are represented as follows: cash and balances on bank accounts, trade and other accounts

receivable {except for receivables that are not represented by financial assets), VAT government bonds, bank
deposits.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum exposure to credit risk. Maximum level of credit
risk as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 was preseated as follows:

Financial assets 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Cash and cash equivalents 18 242 12 570
Held to maturity investments 6553 9532
Trade accounts receivable 45376 40 628

Total 70171 62 730
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36. Financial risk management (cont.)

a) Credit risk (cont.)

Exposure to credit risk (cont.)

The table below shows an analysis of the Group’s bank deposit by the credit rating of the bank in which they are
held:

Bank group based on credit ratings by Moody's 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Al 7300 9452

Without credit rating 10 942 3118
18 242 12 570

The cash and cash equivalents without credit rating are held with financial institutions in Ukraine with the majority
of them held in a financial institution which is under administration. The rate of held to maturity investments is
Caa3 using the credit rate of government of Ukraine is per Moody’s Rating Agency.

The Group's exposure to credit risk regarding trade accounts receivable is primarily dependent on specific
characteristics of each client. The Group’s policy for credit risk management provides systematic work with
debtors, which includes: analysis of solvency, determination of maximum amount of risk related to one customer
or a group of customers and control over timeliness of debt repayment. The majority of Group’s clients are
longstanding clients, there were no significant losses during the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 resulting
from non-fulfillment of obligations by clients. The Management is examining each individual customer to provide
extended credit terms in the light of the economic environment in Ukraine. The Management believes that
unimpaired amounts are still collectible in full. Concentration of credit risk on trade accounts receivable is
characterised by the following indicators:

For the year ended 31 December 2017 USD 28 064 thousand or 21,9% from the Group’s revenue refers to the
sales transactions carried out with one of the Group’s clients. As at 31 December 2017 USD 10 842 thousand or
23,9% of the total carrying value of trade accounts receivable is due from the single most significant debtor.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 USD 45 119 thousand or 23,6% from the Group's revenue is refers to the
sales transactions carmied out with one of the Group’s clients. As at 31 December 2016 USD 9 135 thousand or
22,5% of the total carrying value of trade accounts receivable is due from the single most significant debtor.

Trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 by dates of origin were presented as follows:

0-30 31-60 61-90 91-120 121-130  181-365  over one

31 December 2017 days days days days days days year LAY

Carrying value of trade

accounts receivable 14 307 9335 9623 2 825 1176 8111 - 45 376
0-30 31-60 61-90 91-120 121-180 181-365  over one

31 December 2016 days days days days days days year LIS

Carrying value of trade

accounts receivable 12 993 14 637 8275 3520 687 100 416 40 628

The amounts in column 0-30 days represent the amounts not past due nor impaired.

The amounts due from related parties are not generally provided where there is no reason to doubt the solvency
of the debtor.
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36. Financial risk management (cont.)

a) Credit risk (cont.)

Exposure to credit risk (cont.)

Related parties tend to be given longer credit terms and the older amounts generally relate to these related parties.

Movement in provision for doubtful debts

for the year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

As at 1 January (54 626) (42 273)

Bad Debt recovered 4 488 -

Provision for doubtful debts and amounts written off - (18 582)

Effect of translation into presentation currency 1589 6 229

As at 31 December {48 549) (54 626)
b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of the Group’s failure to fulfill its financial obligations at the date of maturity. The
Group’s approach to liquidity management is to ensure, to the extent possible, permanent availability of sufficient
liquidity of the Group to fulfill its financial obligations in due time (both in normal conditions and in non-standard
situations), by avoiding unacceptable losses or the risk of damage to the reputation of the Group.

The aim of the Group is the maintenance of balance between continuous financing and flexibility in usage of bank
loans and settlements with suppliers.

In accordance with the plans of the Group, its working capital needs are satisfied by cash flows from operating
activities, as well as by use of loans if cash flows from operating activities are insufficient for liabilities to be
settled. The table below represents the expected maturity of components of working capital:

Exposure to liquidity risk

31 December 2017
Contractual Less than From 3 months From 1to 5 Over

Non-derivative financial liabilities  cash flows 3 months to 1 year years 5 years
Bank loans (168 983) (87 628) (12 536) (68 727) (92)
Long-term bond liabilities (267 633) - (267 633) - -
Trade payables (2 298) (2 298) - - -
Dividends payable (29 542) - - (29 542) -
Interest payable on loans (10 955) - (10 955) - -
Accrued coupon on bonds (14 249) - (14 249) - -
Other payables (1 844) (1 844)

(495 504) (39 926) (307 217) (98 269) (92)
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36. Financial risk management (cont.)

b) Liquidity risk (cont.)

Exposure to liguidity risk (cont.)

31 December 2016
Contractual Less than From 3 months Fromlto5 Over
Non-derivative financial liabilities  cash flows 3 months to 1 year years S5 years
Bank loans (167 824) - {38 288) {93 338) (36 199)
Finance lease (including VAT) (3) - - (3) -
Long-term bond liabilities {267 633) - (11 226) (256 407)
Trade payables {3 062) (3 062) - -
Dividends payable {29 542) - - (29 542)
Interest payable on loans (6 042) - (6 042) -
Accrued coupon on bonds {1919) - (1919) -
Other payables {2 444) - (2 444) -
(478 469) (3 062) (39 919) (379 290) (36 199)
¢) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of negative influence of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates, on revenue position of the Group or on the value of the Group’s available financial instruments.

The objective of market risk management provides control over the Group’s exposure to market risk, as well as
keeping its level within reasonable limits. Description of the Group’s exposure to such market components as
currency risk and interest rate risk, is given below.

i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk which represents a part of market risk is the risk of change in the value of financial
instruments due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

Management does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge foreign currency risks and does not follow
the official policy for distribution of risks between liabilities in one or another currency. However, in the period
of receiving new borrowings and loans, management uses its own estimates to take the decision as for which
currency of denomination will be more favourable for the Group during the expected period until maturity.

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk and the amount in functional currency (UAH) as at 31 December
2017 based on carrying amounts was as follows:

{in conversion to USD thousand) USD EUR TOTAL

Trade payables 269 860 1128
Cash and cash equivalents {20} - (20)
Trade accounts receivable {13 123) (2039) (15 162)
Other payables 18 - 18

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (12 856) {1 180) (14 036)
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36. Financial risk management (cont.)

¢) Market risk (cont.)

i) Foreign currency risk (cont.)

Exposure to foreign currency risk {cont.)

69

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk and the functional currency (EUR) as at 31 December 2017
based on carrying amounts was as follows:

(in conversion to USD thousand) USD

Short-term bond liabilities 231612
Dividends payable 29 542
Other accounts payable 110
Cash and cash equivalents (6 624)
Accrued coupon on bonds 14 249
Net exposure to foreign currency risk 268 889

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency nisk and the amount in local currency as at 31 December 2016 based
on carrying amounts was as follows:

{in conversion to USD thousand) USD EUR TOTAL

Trade payables 263 760 1023
Cash and cash equivalents (768) - (768)
Trade accounts receivable {18 683) - (18 683)
Other payables 6 55 61
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (19 182) 815 (18 367)

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk and the functional currency (EUR) as at 31 December 2016
based on carrying amounts was as follows:

{in conversion to USD thousand) USD

Long-term bond liabilities 219 014
Accounts payable for property, plant and equipment 101
Dividends payable 29 542
Other accounts payable 110
Cash and cash equivalents {9 478)
Accrued coupon on bonds 1919
Net exposure to foreign currency risk 241 208

Sensitivity analysis (foreign currency risk)

Below there is a sensitivity analysis of income (or loss) of the Group before tax to the possible changes in foreign
currency rates. This analysis is conducted based on the assumption that all other variables and interest rates in
particular, remain unchanged.
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36. Financial risk management (cont.)

¢) Market risk (cont.)

i) Foreign currency risk (cont.)

Sensitivity analysis (foreign currency risk) (cont.)

Increase in

eI Effect on profit Eﬂ'ec.t on
Effect in USD thousand: against UAH before tax equity
31 December 2017
UsD 20% 2571 2571
EUR 15% 177 177
Increase in currency Effect on profit Effect on
Effect in USD thousand: rate against EUR before tax equity
31 December 2017 5% (13 444) (13 444)
UsD
Increase in currency Effect on profit Eifect on
Effect in USD thousand: rate against UAH before tax equity
31 December 2016
USD 20% 3836 3 836
EUR 15% (122) (122)
Increase in currency Effect on profit Effect on
Effect in USD thousand: rate against EUR before tax equity
31 December 2016
UsD 5% (12 060) (12 060)

ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is connected with a possibility of changes in value of financial instruments resulting from changes
in interest rates.

At present, the Group’s approach to limitation of interest rate risk consists of borrowings at fixed interest rates.

Structure of interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 the structure of interest financial instruments of the Group,
grouped according to the types of interest rates, was presented as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Instruments with fixed interest rate

Financial assets 6553 9532
Financial liabilities {46 478) (266 950)
Instruments with variable interest rate

Financial liabilities (87 628) {76 756)

Interest rate risk related to the liabilities with the floating interest arises from the possibility that changes in interest
rates will affect the value of the financial instruments. For variable rate borrowings, interest is linked to
EURIBOR.
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36. Financial risk management (cont.)

c) Market risk (cont.)

ii) Interest rate risk (cont.)

Structure of interest rate risk (cont.)

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 the Group’s sensitivity to changes of EURIBOR by 5% was
presented as follows:

Increase/(decrease) Effect on profit

Effect in USD thousand: of floating rate before tax

31 December 2017

EURIBOR 5% 7
EURIBOR -5% (7
31 December 2016

EURIBOR 5% 4
EURIBOR -5% (4)

The effect of interest rate sensitivity on owners’ equity is equal to that on the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Such financial instruments as cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable, financial assistance issued,
interest receivable for deposits, prepayment for bonds, other non trading accounts receivable are not included in

the table given below, since possible effect of changes in interest rate risk (discount rates) under these financial
instruments is not material.

Capital management

The Group’s management follows the policy of providing the firm capital base which allows supporting the trust
of investors, creditors and market and ensuring future business development.

In relation to capital management the Group’s objectives are as follows: maintaining the Group’s ability to adhere
to the going concern principle in order to provide income for owners and benefits to other interested parties, and
also maintaining the optimal capital structure with the purpose of its cost reduction.

To manage capital, the Group’s management, above all, uses the calculations of the financial leverage coefficient
{ratio of leverage ratio) and the ratio between net debt and EBITDA.

Financial leverage is calculated as a ratio between net debt and total amount of capital. Net debt is calculated as
cumulative borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents, Total amount of capital is calculated as own capital
reflected in the statement of financial position plus the amount of net debt.

This ratio measures net debt as a proportion of the capital of the Group, i.e. it correlates the debt with total equity
and shows whether the Group is able to pay the amount of outstanding debts. An increase in this coefficient
indicates an increase in borrowings relative to the total amount of the Group’s capital. Monitoring this indicator
is necessary to keep the optimal correlation between own funds and borrowings of the Group in order to avoid
problems from over leverage.
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36, Financial risk management (cont.)

¢) Market risk (cont.)

Capital management (cont.)

Financial leverage ratio calculation

For the ratio of net debt to EBITDA, the calculation of net debt is as above. EBITDA is an indicator of income
before taxes, interest depreciation and amortisation. It is useful for the Group’s financial analysis, since the
Group’s activity is connected with long-term investments in property, plant and equipment. EBITDA does not
include depreciation, so that in the Group’s opinion, it reflects the approximate cash flows deriving from the
Group’s income in a more reliable way.

The ratio of net debt to EBITDA gives an indication of whether income obtained from operating activities is
sufficient to meet the Group’s liabilities.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 the Group’s financial leverage coefficient was 80,4% and 70,5%
respectively.

Carrying value
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Long-term leans 42 750 93924
Current portion of long-term loans 91 673 31135
Long-term finance lease (including VAT) - 3
Bond liabilities 231 612 219 014
Total debt 366 035 344 076
Cash and cash equivalents {18 242) (12 570)
Net debt 347 793 331 506
Share capital 836 836
Share premium 201 164 201 164
Capital contribution reserve 115 858 115 858
Retained earnings 857723 864 457
Foreign currency translation reserve (1099 825) {1 053 923)
Non-controlling interests 8 765 10 418
Total equity 84 521 138 810
Total amount of equity and net debt 432 314 470 316

Financial leverage coefficient 80,4% 70,5%
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36. Financial risk management (cont.)
¢) Market risk (cont.)
Capital management (cont.)
Financial leverage ratio calculation (cont.)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 ratio of net debt to EBITDA amounted to:

for the year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (7 469) (56 636)
Income tax credit (3311) (3321
Finance income (1982) (2 825)
Finance expenses 33699 31280
Impairment of current assets 138 709
(Profit)/losses on exchange (24 729) 16 622
EBIT (earnings before interest and income tax) (3 654) (14 171)
Depreciation 15411 15 657
EBITDA (earnings before interest, income tax,

depreciation) 11 757 1486
Net debt at the year end 347793 331 506
Net debt at the year end / EBITDA 29,58 223,09

During the year there were no changes in the approach to capital management. The Group is not subject to external
regulatory requirements regarding capital.

d) Livestock diseases risk

The Group's agro-industrial business is subject to risks of outbreaks of various diseases. The Group faces the risk
of outbreaks of disease which are highly contagious and destructive to susceptible livestock, such as avian
influenza or bird flu for its poultry operations. These and other diseases could result in mortality losses. Disease
control measures were adopted by the Group to minimise and manage this risk. The Group's management is
satisfied that its current existing risk management and quality control processes are effective and sufficient to
prevent any outbreak of livestock diseases and related losses.

37. Fair values

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements:

» Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).
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37. Fair values (cont.)

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period, by the
level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized.

Level ] Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2017
Biological Assets - - 19 892 19 892
31 December 2016
Biological Assets - - 22028 22028

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy during the year ended 31
December 2017,

The fair value of biological assets is determined as the discounted value of net cash flows expected from assets.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This framework
includes a valuation team that reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer, and has overall responsibility for fair
value measurement of biological assets.

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. The valuation
team assesses and documents the evidence obtained to support the conclusion that the valuation meets the

requirements of IFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy. Significant valuation issues are reported to
the Chief Financial Officer.

The valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about unobservable inputs to the model, of which
the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the table below:

As at
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Discount rate 24,66% 26,13%
Inflation rate 113,70% 112,40%

The higher the discount rate the lower the fair value of biological assets, and the higher the inflation rate the higher
the fair value of biological assets. Any interrelationship between the unobservable inputs is not considered to have
a significant impact within the range of reasonably possible alternative assumptions.

Sensitivity analysis of biological assets fair value to the possible changes in foreign currency rates is disclosed in
the table below:

Increase/decrease of Effect on fair value of

Effect in USD thousand: rate biological assets
31 December 2017

Discount rate -2,50% 265
Discount rate 2,50% {261)
Inflation rate 1,75% 1058
Inflation rate -1,75% {1 058)
31 December 2016

Discount rate -2,50% (431}
Discount rate 2,50% 442
Inflation rate 1,75% 1576

Inflation rate -1,75% (1576)
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37. Fair values (cont.)

There were no transfers to/from Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year ended 31 December 201 7.

The reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for the fair value measurements in Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy is analyzed in note 6 of these consolidated financial statements.

Total gain or losses for the year as shown in the reconciliation (note 6) are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as “(Loss)/profit from revaluation of biological assets
at fair value” (31 December 2017: Loss USD 3 108 thousand).

The following table analyses the fair values of financial instruments not measures at fair value, by the level in the
fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorized:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair Total carrying
value amount
31 December 2017
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 18 242 - 18 242 18 242
Held to maturity investments 7101 - - 7101 6 553
Trade and other receivables - - 45376 45376 45376
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables - - 2298 2298 2298
Bank loans - 134 106 - 134 106 134 106
Short-term bond liabilities 49 500 - - 49 500 231 612
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair Total carrying
value amount
31 December 2016
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 12 570 - 12570 12 570
Held to maturity investments 8 768 - - 8§ 768 9532
Trade and other receivables - = 40 628 40 628 40 628
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables - - 3062 3062 3062
Bank loans - 124 732 - 124 732 124 732
Long-term bond liabilities 63 988 63 988 219014

Assumptions in assessing fair value of financial instruments and assessment of their subsequent recognition

As no readily available market exists for a large part of the Group's financial instruments, judgment is necessary
in arriving at fair value, based on current economic conditions and specific risks attributable to the instruments.
The estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Group could realize in a market
exchange from the sale of its full holding of a particular instrument.

As at 31 December 2017, the following methods and assumptions, which remained the same as the prior year,

were used by the Group to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable
to estimate such value:

Cash and cash equivalents - the fair value is estimated to be the same as the carrying value for these short-term
financial instruments.
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37. Fair values {cont.)

Held to maturity investments - the fair value of held to maturity investments are measured using the available
quoted market prices.

Trade and other accounts receivable, financial assistance issued - the fair value is reasonably estimated to be the

same as the carrying value, as provision for doubtful debts is reasonable estimation of discount needed for
reflection of credit risk influence.

Trade and other accounts payable - the fair value is estimated to be the same as the carrying value for trade and
other accounts payable.

Application of the effective interest rate method for calculating carrying value of short-term accounts receivable,

interest free loans granted and received and accounts payable does not significantly influence the relevant rates in
the consolidated financial information of the Group.

Short-term and long-term bank loans, finance lease liabilities, short-term bonds issued - the fair value of short-
term and long-term bank loans, finance lease liabilities, short-term bonds issued is estimated to approximate the
total carrying value as the nominal interest rate of long-term bank loans is approximately tied to the market rate
concerning bank loans with similar credit risk rate and repayment period at the reporting period.

Bonds issued - the fair value of bonds issued is measured using the available quoted market prices from the
relevant stock exchange which the bonds are listed.

As at 31 December 2017 the fair value of the above financial instruments approximated te their carrying amount
besides short-term bonds whose fair value was USD 49 500 thousand (long-term bonds 31 December 2016: USD
63 988 thousand).

38. Risks related to the Group’s operating environment in Ukraine

Ukraine is still involved in the military conflict with pro-Russian terrorists and Russian troops, As a result Ukraine
is in a state of economic war.

During the conflict (2014-2017) Ukraine faced the below mentioned consequences: inability to attract investment,
capital outflow, negative trade balance and national currency devaluation. This inevitably led to lower living
standards and decrease in purchasing power of the population.

These events have affected the activities of the Group. Three companies located on the Crimean peninsula are
beyond the control of the Group due to annexation of the peninsula, as follows: LLC Yuzhnaya - Holding, SC
Ptakhohospodarstvo Yuzhnaya Holding of LLC Yuzhnaya Holding, and PPB LLC Ptytsecompleks. The
companies located on the territory of the Lugansk and Donetsk regions are under control of the pro-Russian
terrorists, as follows: PISC Ptakhohospodarstvo Chervonyi Prapor, SC Ptakhofabryka Chervonyi Prapor Pouliry,
of PJSC Ptakhohospodarstvo ChervoniyPrapor, PSPC Interbusiness and PISC Vuhlehirskyi Eksperementalnyi
Kombikormovyi Zavod. The Group has lost the control over these companies and recognized the loss on
impairment of these assets in 2014. In addition, the Group has lost the share of the market (Crimea accounted for
5%, Lugansk and Donetsk regions — for 15% of Ukrainian consumer market).
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38. Risks related to the Group’s operating environment in Ukraine (cont.)

Challenges facing the Group:
- Decline in consumer demand in Ukraine due to lower purchasing power of population and increase in
household egg production.

- Increase in cost of eggs produced nominated in UAH as imported materials are used in production.

- Substantial decrease in margin due to increase in cost of sales of egg (USD 0,05 per 1 egg) while no relevant
increase in prices was observed (due to decline in demand).

- Decrease in prices on traditional for the Group foreign markets and decline in sales volumes. The latter was
caused by the ban imposed on export of poultry products from Ukraine due to Avian influenza outbreaks.

The Group seeks to retain its assets and market position both on domestic and international markets.

Despite hard times in the history of the Group, we look forward to positive developments in the coming years.
Ukraine is facing painful yet substantial and necessary reforms. The government has successfully implemented
the banking reform, introduced several important changes in energy sector, created anticorruption agencies,
launched medical and pension reforms, we also saw tax cuts and new administrative approaches. The
anticorruption court is expected to be established as a part of judicial reform. The administration reform aimed at
decentralization is being gradually implemented, granting more executive and financial autonomy to local
authorities. A number of global organizations is supporting the reforms. The political commitment of the
government to carry out the reforms and international support inspire confidence Ukraine can not only overcome
the crisis but also imply European values and regulations and become a part of Europe not only geographically
but also legally. The reforms will eventually improve the living standards, which will have a positive effect on
the Group activities. Moving towards the EU, the Group expects to sell not only egg products but also class (grade)
A shell eggs on European markets in the near future.

39. Events after the reporting period

The Company and its advisors continue to be engaged in discussions with various groups in relation to its debt
restructuring process which is a result of breach of covenants of its bonds and debt agreements with several banks.

Additionally, at the beginning of 2018 the Company was granted the EU approval to start exporting shell eggs in
that region.

There were no further material events after the reporting period except the fact that while Management believes
it is taking all necessary measures to maintain the sustainability of the business in the current circumstances, a
further deteriorate of economic and political conditions in Ukraine could adversely affect the Group’s results and
financial position so that it is currently impossible to predict.

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of
Avangardco Investments Public Limited on 22 March 2018,






